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To our shareholders employees and friends

believe an important measure of management team is its handling of adversity

and from that
perspective

there is much to be
pleased

about 2010 While

operational improvements during the past year
are not reflected in the valuation of

the Company today we are confident they will be soon Without doubt 2010 was

Jaguar Minings most challenging year operationally However the organization

has and is continuing to meet the challenges by improving the team substantially

better planning implementing more drilling and development changing mining

techniques
and

focusing its senior personnel on the mines The 2010 actions have

resulted in tangible progress
in the operations

Managements main objective
of making the operations sustainable and profitable required the sacrifice of production

in our most significant mineralization The second half of 2010 development emphasis was the primary factor adversely

affecting gold output
and

operating costs As result our financial results were far below our expectations Our singular

focus remains where it should
maximizing our gold production reducing our operating costs safeguarding our workers interests and

seeking accretive
ways tofnrther grow

our Company If we continue to execute on these four key objectives the stock will perform

The actions we took and implemented for the most part during 2U1U make Jaguar Mining much
stronger company

today Additionally there were several major accomplishments throughout the
year

which have been overshadowed by

the
challenges

of
production but nonetheless are significant to Jaguar Minings shareholders

We completed construction of the CaetØ operation on time and on budget and commissioned the plant in the third

quarterof 2010 CaetØ is comprised of two underground mines Pilar and Roça Grande which together supply the

largest
and most efficient

processing plant we have built Since 2006 this is the third such integrated gold mining/

processing complex we have designed constructed and began operating After commissioning phase the first
gold

pour was in August We continue to ramp-up operations at this new facility which will be key part of Jaguar Minings

production profile
for many years

to come

At Turmalina we sacrificed production so that we could make the change to the new mining method The new method

and backfill
system

have overcome geo-mechanical issues that increased dilution and caused our operating costs to rise

sharply Halting production in the high grade ore of the mine during the final
quarter

of 2010 was also
necessary

so

that we could increase the
pace

of forward development to ensure our 2011 production targets could be met With the

mine performing significantly better today along with the measurable strides in underground development that increases

flexibility am pleased to report we are on course to meet plan

The PaciŒncia
operation continues to get better with each

quarter
In mid-2010 we lengthened the Santa Isabel Mines

reach by completing the underground drift to connect it with the NW1 Mine This improves our ability to more

efficiently haul ore to the surface as well as capture
other cost savings such as for maintenance services and personnel

transport times We are developing the mine at
greater

rates and new resources in the high-grade conglomerates zones

will
help

ftirther improve gold output
at this facility during the second half of 2011

Our continued emphasis on Health Safety and Environmental is and will remain the number one priority in our value

system

PRESIDENTS LETTER



Brazils economy is growing rapidly and the demand for capable people is high in nearly all sectors Consequently

attracting
and

maintaining experienced and qualified personnel is challenge Despite
the booming economy in Brazil

we have more talent today than ever Our value
system

based on Safe Planned Profitable
Production continues to attract good

people and sustain us with
very

low turnover rate

On the growth front we completed pre-feasibility study
in May for our Gurupi Project in northern Brazil Our technical

teams spent
the next six months evaluating alternative

processing
schemes that would sharply reduce our operating costs

and enhance the
projects

economic value We
incorporated

these
technologies

into the final feasibility study completed

and filed in
January

of 2011
Subsequently we raised

nearly US$100 million to continue advancing this
project

for an

early-2013 start If all
goes as planned in its first full

year
of

operations
the Gurupi Project will boost Jaguar Minings

annual
gold output by an additional 150000 ounces and

sharply
reduce cash

operating costs

We continue to act upon our strong
belief that our success is closely related to the

prosperity
of the local communities in

which we operate During 2010 we reinforced our commitmentto our sustainable development program The program

directly
benefits local communities by making contributions and

providing support to initiatives in the areas of education

health environmental and local infrastructure We are particularly proud of the water treatment plant we built in 2010

in the town of Acurul near our Pacibncia
operation

which now provides potable water to over 400 families

Our team is focused and
delivering

results
daily at our operations

We are advancing Jaguar Mining for efficient growth

by concentrating our efforts on exploration programs
in and around our existing

mines and developing the robust Gurupi

Project Despite
2010

being challenge am confident we have
properly

invested in our future and are on the path to

sustainable profitable production

On behalf of the more than 1800 employees and Directors of
Jaguar Mining thank our shareholders for their ongoing

support

Sincerely

Daniel Titcomb

President and Chief Executive Officer





MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2010



All figures are in U.S dollars unless otherwise indicated
Cautionary notes regarding forward-looking statements and estimates of

inferred and measured and indicated resources to U.S investors follows this Managements Discussion and
Analysis MDR

INTRODUCTION

The following discussion and analysis of
operating

results and financial condition of
Jaguar Mining Inc Jaguar or the tom-

pany contained in this MDA should be read in conjunction with the annual audited consolidated financial statements and the

notes thereto of the Company for the
years

ended 2010 and 2009 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in Canada Canadian GAAP and the annual audited financial statements have been

reconciled to U.S generally accepted accounting principles U.S GAAP The Company reports
its financial statements in US

dollars US$ however significant portion of the Companys expenses are incurred in either Canadian dollars Cdn.$ or

Brazilian reais R$
The discussion and analysis contained in this MDA are as of March 21 2011

CORE BUSINESS

Jaguar is an Ontario chartered gold producer engaged in the acquisition exploration development and operation of gold producing

properties in Brazil The Company controls 38220 hectares in the Iron Quadrangle mining district of Brazil greenstone
belt

located near the city of Belo Horizonte in the state of Minas Gerais which hosts the Companys operating facilities In addition

Jaguar holds mineral concessions totaling 166513 hectares in the state of Maranhao which hosts the Companys Gurupi Project

currently under development The Company may consider the acquisition and subsequent exploration development and operation

of other gold properties primarily focused in Brazil

Jaguar was formed in 2002 In 2004 the Company constructed and began operations of small open pit mine the SabarÆ opera

tion SabarÆ
provided cash flow to enable Jaguar to develop its first underground mining operation Turmalina where construction

of mill and
processing facility

was completed in 2006 In 2007 the Company completed the construction of its second under

ground mining operation and processing facility PaciŒncia Between 2007 and today Jaguar built four additional underground

mines and
completed construction of its third integrated processing facility the CaetØ Plant which was commissioned in May 2010

The Company is currently producing gold at its Turmalina PaciŒncia and CaetØ operations and recently completed the Gurupi

Project feasibility study which was filed on January 31 2011

Given the location of the senior management team headquartered in Belo Horizonte to the Companys nearby operating assets

significant operating flexibility and oversight of the operations is achieved Moreover as the Companys operations are in close

proximity to one another significant synergies amongst operations are realized

The Company recently consolidated its corporate management engineering exploration supply logistics and maintenance teams

into central location in Belo Horizonte which is expected to produce additional efficiencies and future cost savings

As of December 31 2010 the Company had 1788 employees 1778 of which are based in Brazil The remaining 10 employees are

based in the Companys corporate office in New Hampshire USA

Jaguar is listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange and on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol JAG

OUTLOOK AND OBJECTWES

The Company intends to become mid-size
gold producer

with sustainable production of approximately 400000 ounces of
gold

per year by 2013

At its southem
operations

in Minas Gerais Jaguar has an estimated 3407930 ounces of measured and indicated gold resources

based on 26931890 tonnes with an average grade of 3.94 grams per tonne and 835230 ounces of inferred gold resources based

on 6040440 tonnes with an average grade
of 4.30 grams per tonne Estimated proven and probable reserves which are included

in the measured and indicated
resources

total 1932550 ounces of gold based on 16987040 tonnes with an average grade
of 3.54

grams per
tonne



At its Gurupi Project in northern Brazil Jaguar has an estimated 2518170 ounces of indicated gold resources based on 69887500

tonnes with an average grade of 1.12 grams per tonne and 616630 ounces of inferred gold resources based on 18676700 tonnes

with an average grade
of 1.03

grams per tonne Estimated probable reserves which are included in the indicated resources total

2327930 ounces of gold based on 63756700 tonnes with an average grade of 1.14
grams per

tonne

In total Jaguar has an estimated 5926100 ounces of measured and indicated gold resources based on 96819390 tonnes tb an

average grade of 1.90 grams per tonne and 1451860 ounces of inferred gold resources based on 24717140 tonnes with an aver

age grade of 1.83 grams per tonne Estimated
proven

and probable reserves which are included in the measured and indicated

resources total 4260480 ounces of gold based on 80743740 tonnes with an average grade of 1.64
grams per

tonne

All of Jaguars primary ore bodies and development targets remain open at depth and along strike The Company has confirmed

the on-going delineation of additional gold resources result of planned forward mine development as well as intensive surface and

underground drilling programs to establish the foundations to achieve production targets
This belief is based on the Companys

development initiatives as of December 31 2010 which includes nearly 65 km of underground development at its properties in

Minas Gerais and managements experience operating in the Iron Quadrangle including the geological characteristics of other gold

operations in the district

Through its brownfield exploration programs the Company continues to add gold resources to its mineral inventory primarily at

its operations in Minas Gerais As an example during underground exploration at the Turmalina underground mine the Company

discovered new zone approximately 100 meters to the west of Ore Body Through additional drilling and analysis these lower

grade resources in what is today Ore Body have been included in updated mineral resource calculations for the Turmalina op
eration The effect of

blending these lower grade resources into the Turmalina resource base did not impact the in-situ grades in

Ore Bodies or Based on the evaluation of gold production to-date compared to the Companys initial resource estimates Ore
Bodies and the figures reconcile and long-term resource model grades remain intact

The Companys objective is to enhance shareholder value by building operating and expanding cost-effective gold mines by adding

resources and reserves to its existing mineral inventory and by accretive transactions to support the Companys production targets

The Company plans to achieve this objective by completing the development of its Gurupi Project and expanding overall production

at its three
underground operations The Company continues to explore and develop its resources in Brazil Management believes

there is an opportunity to expand current operations beyond the present targets as additional mineralized zones in close proximity

to its existing mines are discovered and evaluated

Jaguars well-developed infrastructure resource base experienced personnel and rigorous health safety and environmental pro

grams favorably position
the Company to achieve attractive growth at relatively lower risk compared to

peers

Based on cash on hand and
assumptions concerning production costs foreign exchange rates forward gold prices and available bor

rowing capability
the Company believes internally-generated cash flow from operations will allow it to execute on its plans



2011-2015 ESTIMATED PRODUCTION AND CASH OPERATING COSTS

The Companys 2011-2015 gold production estimates are as follows

Year Gold Production ounces
2011 195000205000

2012 240000 255000

2013 400000 420000

2014 435000 460000

2015 390000425000

The significant increase in gold production in 2013 is due to the scheduled commissioning of the Gurupi Project which is expected

to begin producing in early-2013

The Companys 2011 2015 average
cash

operating costs estimates are as follows based on $1.00 R$ 1.70 exchange rate

Year Cash Operating Cost

2011 660700

2012 590630

2013 550590

2014 560600

2015 570610



OPERATING MINES AND DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS

Production and Operating Performance

The following
tables set forth certain operating data for Turmalina PaciŒncia and CaetØ for the three and twelve months ended

December 31 2010 and 2009

Quarter Ended December 31 2010 Operating Data

Ore Processed

000 Feed grade g/t Plant Recovery rate

Production

ounces

Cash Operating

cost/t

Cash Operating

cost/ounce

Turmalina 143 2.89 88% 10275 66.70 899

Paciencia 135 3.57 94% 13808 61.80 628

CaetØ 156 2.84 88% 10599 63.40 804

Total 434 3.09 92% 34682 64.00 762

Year Ended December 31 2010 Operating Data

Ore Processed

000 Feed grade g/t Plant Recovery rate

Production

ounces

Cash Operating

cost/t

Cash Operating

cost/ounce

Turmalina

PaciŒncia

692 3.20 87% 59481 64.50 774

626 3.32 93% 59287 60.90 670

CaetØ 258 2.85 91% 19099 63.10 792

Total 1576 319 90% 137867 62.80 732

Quarter Ended December 31 2009 Operating Data

Ore Processed

000 Feed grade g/t Plant Recovery rate

Production

ounces

Cash Operating

cost/t

Cash Operating

cost/ounce

Turmalina 179 3.93 89% 21184 63.00 523

Paclincia 178 3.41 93% 18707 59.30 556

CaetØ

Total 357 3.67 91% 39891 61.20 539

Year Ended December 31 2009 Operating Data

Ore Processed

000 Feed grade g/t Plant Recovery rate

Production

ounces

Cash Operating

cost/t

Cash Operating

cost/ounce

Turmalina 588 4.81 89% 82071 59.60 424

Paciencia 646 3.42 93% 66671 51.20 502

CaetØ

Total 1234 4.14 91% 148742 55.50 462

During the three months ended December31 2010 the Company produced total of 34682 ounces of gold at Turmalina PaciŒn

cia and CaetØ at an average
cash

operating cost of $762
per

ounce compared to 39891 ounces at an
average

cash operating cost of

$539 per ounce for the same period
last

year see Non-GAAP Performance Measures

During the twelve months ended December 31 2010 the Company produced total of 137867 ounces of gold at Turmalina

PaciŒncia and CaetØ at an
average

cash
operating cost of $732

per
ounce compared to 148742 ounces at an

average
cash operating

cost of $462 per ounce exclusive of SabarÆ 2009 gold production of 6360 ounces at an
average

cash operating costs of $680
per

ounce for the same period
last

year see Non- GAAP Performance Measures



The decrease in gold production for the three months and twelve months ended December 31 2010 compared to the previous

year largely stemmed from geo-mechanical problems at Turmalina and increased dilution which is described below under

Turmalina Average cash
operating

costs were higher than those recorded in 2009 due to several factors lower gold production

ii significantly stronger R$ against
the US$ iii geo-mechanical issues encountered in Ore Body at the Turmalina operation

which elevated dilution and significantly reduced feed grades into the
processing plant and iv start-up

issues at the Companys new

CaetØ operation where lower grade ore was utilized during the commissioning phase

Jaguar sold 34134 ounces of gold at an average
realized

price
of $1306 per ounce in the

quarter
ended December 31 2010 com

pared to 35944 ounces of gold at an average
realized price of $1099 per ounce in the

quarter
ended December 31 2009 Gold

sales generated cash
operating margin

of $544 per ounce for the
quarter

ended December 31 2010 compared to cash operating

margin of $560
per ounce in the

quarter
ended December 31 2009

During the twelve months ended December 31 2010 the Company sold 140530 ounces of gold at an average
realized price of

$1215 compared to 143698 ounces at an average
realized

price
of $979 per ounce in 2009 This produced an average

cash
operat

ing margin of $483
per ounce in 2010 decrease of $28 per ounce or approximately 5% from the

average
cash operating margin

of $511
per

ounce in 2009

Consolidated underground mine development totaled 4.9 kilometers for the three months ended December 31 2010 and 18.8

kilometers for the twelve months ended December 31 2010

Turmalina

Prior to 2011 Turmalina was an underground mine utilizing the sublevel stoping mining method in Ore Body and the cut-

and-fill mining method at Ore Bodies and with
paste

fill at all
stopes

As of early-201 all ore bodies are being mined using

cut-and-fill and ore produced at the Turmalina Mine is transported to the adjacent 1800 tonnes
per day tpd carbon-in-pulp

CIP processing plant the Turmalina Plant

During the three months ended December 31 2010 Turmalina produced 10275 ounces of gold at an
average

cash operating cost of

$899 per
ounce compared to 21184 ounces at an average

cash
operating

cost of $523
per

ounce during the three months ended De
cember 31 2009 Cash

operating
costs for the

quarter
ended December 31 2010 were primarily impacted by lower-than-planned

tonnage and lower run-of-mine ROM grades which averaged 2.92
grams per

tonne in the fourth quarter of 2010 compared

to 2.91
grams per

tonne in the previous quarter Tonnage into the mill during the quarter ended December 31 2010 was 142765

tonnes 28% decrease from 199608 tonnes in the previous quarter primarily as
consequence

of geo-mechanical problems
that

caused increased dilution and delayed mining of pillars and diverted focus to forward development at the
expense

of ore produc

tion in Ore Body

For the twelve months ended December 31 2010 Turmalina produced 59481 ounces of gold compared to 82071 ounces in 2009

at cash operating cost of $774
per ounce compared to $424 per ounce in 2009

At the beginning of the
quarter

ended December 31 2010 the Company appointed new general manager and new mine
superin

tendent at the Turmalina operation The Company also elected to deploy additional personnel and equipment to prioritize
forward

development in Ore Body In order to ensure structural integrity and improve safety underground the backfilling process
of

all previously mined openings by the selective stoping method in Ore Body was completed during the quarter
The

backfilling

operation had delayed mining of the high-grade temporary support pillars that had been left in place in Ore Body These
pillars

will be selectively mined throughout 2011

As part of its previously announced efforts to convert the mining method at Turmalina from selective stoping to cut-and-fill in Ore

Body the Company accelerated forward underground development during the three months ended December 31 2010 The

mining team achieved 1.7 kilometers of new development during the
quarter

which represents the highest quarterly rate in the his

tory of the Turmalina operation and was over 25% higher than the rate of development achieved on quarterly basis during
the first

half of 2010 In 2010 underground mine development at Turmalina totaled 5.9 kilometers Management continues to believe that

the conversion of mining methods should be essentially completed during the first quarter of 2011 Actual mining
of the

panels
in

Ore Body has already demonstrated significant improvement in dilution control which is now averaging below 15% as compared

to much higher rates during 2010 when the selective sublevel stoping method was used
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As of the date of this MDA Turmalina has 14 fuiiy developed stopes and 31 workable faces across all three ore bodies 10%

increase since the end of 2010 This represents 10 months of developed ore reserves The Companys goal is to have 18 months of

developed ore reserves at the Turmalina Mine by year-end

PaciŒncia

PaciŒncias mining complex is composed of three underground mines Santa Isabel Palmital and NW1 that utilize the cut and fill

mining method and treated tailings backfill system Ore produced from these mines is transported to the adjacent 1800 tpd CIP

processing plant the PaciŒncia Plant

During the three months ended December 31 2010 PaciŒncia produced 13808 ounces of gold at an average cash operating cost

of $628 per ounce compared to 18707 ounces at an average
cash operating cost of $556 per

ounce during the three months ended

December 31 2009 During the previous quarter the Company produced 16526 ounces of gold at cash operating cost of $695

per
ounce The primary reason for the decrease in PaciŒncias gold output from the previous quarter is tied to the Companys deci

sion to cease ore shipments from the Pilar Mine to the PaciŒncia Plant in the fourth quarter and instead divert its tonnage to the new

CaetØ Plant which
completed

the
commissioning phase

Cash
operating costs for the

quarter
ended December 31 2010 declined

by $67 per ounce or an improvement of approximately 10% compared to the previous quarter

The
average feed grade into the PaciŒncia Plant during the quarter was 3.57

grams per tonne the highest of any quarter in 2010

Cash
operating costs were the lowest recorded of

any quarter during the year The
average

ROM grade from the Santa Isabel Mine

was 3.69 grams per tonne in the quarter ended December 31 2010 compared to an
average

of 2.97
grams per

tonne during the first

nine months of 2010 an improvement of approximately 24%

Combined
underground development for the mines supplying the PaciŒncia Plant totaled 1.5 kilometers during the quarter

and

nearly 7.0 kilometers in 2010 Efforts to bring the new Ouro Fino Mine into production in 2011 continued on plan with comple

tion of the main access ramp

The Company has taken
delivery of fleet of new smaller mining equipment to access the narrower sections of

high grade zones

in order to improve selectivity in the Santa Isabel Mine Additional units are expected to be received and integrated into mining

operations during
the first half of 2011 Management believes this fleet of new equipment along with the existing development at

Santa Isabel and the added
tonnage

from Ouro Fino should
largely offset the shifting of the tonnage from Pilar in meeting PaciŒn

cias forward
production targets

During the twelve months ended December 31 2010 PaciŒncia produced 59287 ounces of
gold at an average

cash
operating cost

of $670 per ounce compared to 66671 ounces at an average cash operating cost of $502 per ounce in 2009 The decline in pro
duction resulted from

slight
decline in feed

grades as well as the Companys decision to re-direct ore from Pilar to the new CaetØ

processing plant during
November 2010

As of the date of this MDA there are 13
frilly developed stopes and 16 workable faces in the Santa Isabel Mine over 25% more

than
in-place at the end of 2010 This

represents 10 months of developed ore reserves The Companys goal is to have 18 months

of
developed ore reserves at the Santa Isabel Mine by year-end

CaetØ

CaetØs
mining complex has two underground mines Roça Grande and Pilar that primarily utilize the cut-and-fill

mining

method as well as some sublevel stoping Ore produced from these mines is transported to the 2200 tpd capacity CIP processing

plant thc CaetØ Plant adjaccnt to th Roça Graride Mine The Company declared conuneiicial production at the Caet Plant

during
the third

quarter
of 2010

During the three months ended December 31 2010 CaetØ completed its first full quarter of operations
and

produced 10599

ounces of
gold at an average

cash
operating cost of $804 per ounce Operations at the CaetØ Plant were temporarily suspended in

October 2010 in order to replace
the

tailings discharge pump system which had failed during commissioning Tonnage into the

mill
during

the
quarter

totaled 156344 tonnes at an average feed grade
of 2.84 grams per tonne Feed grades into the CaetØ Plant

continued to be influenced
by

the
large stockpile of low-grade development grade ore from the adjacent Roça Grande Mine

During the twelve months ended December 31 2010 CaetØ produced 19099 ounces of gold at an
average

cash operating cost of

$792 per ounce
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Underground development at the Pilar and Roça Grande mines totaled 1.6 kilometers during the three months ended December

31 2010 and 5.9 kilometers in 2010

As of the date of this MDA the Pilar and Roça Grande mines had total of 14 open stopes
and 16 workable faces five additional

faces since the close of 2010 This
represents over 18 months of developed ore reserves at the Roça Grande and Pilar mines

SabarÆ

During the three months ended December 31 2010 the Company continued to leave the Sahara operation idle No ore was

produced or shipped to the plant during the
quarter

The Company continues to evaluate the
strategic

alternatives for this idled

operation and will likely dispose of the assets during the next 12 months During the three months ended December 31 2010 the

Company recorded $0.3 million charge to further reduce the estimated fair value of the SabarÆ
facility

to zero

Gurupi Project

During the three months ended December 31 2010 the Company continued its work on the Gurupi Project feasibility study which

was completed and filed on January 31 2011 The NI 43-101 compliant feasibility study was prepared for
Jaguar by TechnoMine

Services LLC TechnoMine under the
supervision

of Ivan Machado M.Sc RE REng Principal of TechnoMine Mr

Machado is Qualified Person as defined in NI 43-101

The feasibility study confirmed an estimated 69887500 tonnes of indicated mineral resources at an average grade of 1.12
grams per

tonne totaling 2518170 ounces of gold and 18676700 tonnes of inferred mineral resources at an average grade of 1.03
grams per

tonne totaling 616630 ounces of gold Probable gold reserves which are included in the reported mineral resource estimate are

estimated at 63756700 tonnes at an average grade of 1.14 grams per
tonne totaling 2327930 ounces The

average stripping
ratio

is estimated at 3.94

The feasibility study includes technical review of well-tested
process

route that provides proven advantages over traditional

semi-autogenous grinding and ball milling Power
consumption

of the comminution
stage

of the
process

route was minimized by

incorporating secondary cone crusher and high pressure grinding roll HPGR followed by energy-saving
vertical mills as

opposed to ball mills In addition power costs have been reduced to an average
of $0075/kWh based on an option to utilize an

approximate 40 kilometer 230-ky transmission line to supply the Projects main substation The
processing

circuit incorporates

intensive concentration by flotation and continuous discharge gravity
concentration plant which reduces ore feed into the mill

wherein approximately 26% of processed ore flows into the leaching circuit thus reducing environmental liabilities operating

expenses
and capital expenditures

summary of the feasibility study economic results is as follows

Assumed
average gold price

Average mill feed grade

ROM total
tonnage

Estimated mining rate

Metallurgical recovery

Total gold production

Annual
average production

Mine life

Start production

Capital cost

Average cash operating cost

Average total cash cost

Assumed exchange rate

NPV 6%

After-tax IRR

Cumulative Cash Flow

Payback

$1066 per ounce

1.10
grams per

tonne of gold

63756700 tonnes

million tonnes
per year over the life-of-mine

5.6%

1932920 ounces

148690 gold ounces

13
years

2013

$278 million pre-opcrational $345.7 million life-of-mine

$445 per ounce of gold

$676 per ounce of gold

R$1.80 per $1.00 through 2012 R$1.90 per $1.00 2013 through 2030

$337.0 million

29.1%

$639.3 million after tax

3.1
years
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sensitivity analysis is included in the feasibility study to measure the impact of key factors such as capital cost operating expenses

gold price exchange rate and
metallurgical recovery

on the NPV and IRR For current gold prices in excess of $1300 per ounce

the NPV 6% would be over $550 million with an after-tax IRR of approximately 42%

The Company is continuing with the work
necessary

to receive the appropriate environmental licenses for the Gurupi Project

public hearing in connection with the Previous License LP was held on March 16 2011 and the outcome was positive As

result of this meeting Jaguar expects to receive the LP in mid-April 2011 After the LP is granted Jaguar
will start the

process
of

obtaining
the Installation License

In April 2011 the Company intends to initiate 30000-meter drill program on targets
in close proximity to the main ore bodies

identified in the
feasibility study Based on existing drilling results from these nearby targets management believes the mineral

resource base for the
Gurupi Project could significantly increase Management estimates the cost of this additional program will

total
approximately $12 million including infrastructure development drilling metallurgical testing

and technical analysis

At the conclusion of this drilling program and prior to the construction commitment the Company will determine whether to

proceed with the
development as outlined in the recently completed feasibility study or if warranted to increase the

scope
and scale

of the
project

This decision could include two-phase approach which allows the project to proceed as planned and subsequently

expand the
processing circuit to accommodate additional ore from the nearby targets

EXPLORATION

Turmalina

During the three months ended December 31 2010 Jaguar continued to conduct underground exploration with goal of increas

ing resources and reserves and
expanding Turmalinas annual production The exploration effort was focused on Zone and Faina

and Pontal
targets

The latter two targets contain higher-grade refractory ore The Company drilled total of 1018 meters in 19

surface drill holes to evaluate these
targets during the quarter In addition the Company drilled 557 meters in four underground

drill holes into Ore Bodies and where
preliminary results confirmed the extension of the mineralization to depth 400 meters

from surface

During the twelve months ended December 31 2010 exploration activities at the Turmalina mining complex consisted of geologi

cal detailing and in-fill drilling at the Faina Pontal and Zone targets Jaguar also conducted surface and underground drilling at

Ore Bodies and to assist with
mining activities as well as to test the continuity of the ore bodies at depth total of 20210

meters in 122 surface drill holes and 557 meters in four underground drill holes were completed in 2010 at these
targets

During the second
quarter

of 2011 Jaguar expects to report the results of these exploration campaigns and provide an updated NI

43-10 resource estimate for the Faina and Pontal targets

PaciŒncia

During the three months ended December 31 2010 Jaguar focused its exploration program at the PaciŒncia mining complex on

the Ore Body NW1 The Company drilled total of 997 meters in 29 underground drill holes in this target during the quarter

During the twelve months ended December 31 2010 exploration activities at the PaciŒncia mining complex were concentrated on

Ore Body NW1 and the NW3 Target
which are located two kilometers and four kilometers from the Santa Isabel Mine respec

tively total of 19023 meters in 175 surface and underground drill holes were completed on these
targets

in 2010 These
targets

are located on the same shear zone and
possess similar geological and mineralization characteristics

During the second
quarter

of 2011 Jaguar expects to report the results of these exploration campaigns

CaetØ

During the twelve months ended December 31 2010 exploration activities at the CaetØ mining complex were concentrated at the

Roça Grande and Serra Paralso Agua de Sapo and Boa Vista II targets total of 9649 meters in 84 surface drill holes were

completed at these
targets in 2010 In December 2010 the Company started an underground drilling program to investigate the

down plunge continuity
of the mineralization between levels and 10 at the Pilar Mine As

part
of this program Jaguar plans to

complete 8000 meters of
drilling during 2011
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Pedra Branca

In March 2007 Jaguar entered into joint venture
agreement

with Xstrata to explore the Pedra Branca Project in the State of CearÆ

in northeastern Brazil The Pedra Branca Project has mineral concessions totaling 51568 hectares located in and around municipal

areas with good infrastructure

Since 2007 Jaguar has been
carrying out geological reconnaissance trenching and soil geochemistry in the concession area as well

as conducting an exploration drill program to test the continuity of the mineralization at depth and laterally

During twelve months ended December 31 2010 Jaguar continued with an exploration program at the Pedra Branca Project in

cluding extensive geological mapping drainage and soil geochemistry detailing of anomalous zones and trenching

MINERAL RESOURCES AND RESERVES ESTIMATES

In March 2011 the Company completed an internal reconciliation of its mineral resources and reserves Ivan Machado Sc

RE REng audited the internal reconciliation Mr Machado is an independent Qualified Person as such term is defined in NI

43-101 The tables below set forth mineral resource and reserve estimates for the Turmalina PaciŒncia and CaetØ operations as of

December 31 2010 and mineral resource and reserve estimates for the Gurupi Project as of January 31 2011

Table Summary of Estimated Mineral Resources12

RESOURCES

tonnage in metric tonnes and grades in grams/tonne

RESOURCES

ounces Au

Measured Average

Grade

glt

Indicated Average

Grade

g/t

Measured

Indicated

Average

Grade

glt

Interred Average

Grade

glt

Measured

Indicated

Inferred

Southern Brazil

PaciŒncia

Santa Isabel14 2913290 3.44 774060 2.80 3687350 3.31 812240 3.61 391930 94280

0ther3 1531090 3.61 1567000 3.97 3098090 3.79 500000 5.00 377760 80390

Total 4444380 3.50 2341060 3.58 6785440 3.53 1312240 4.14 769690 174670

CaetØ

Pilar5 2459860 3.85 1619160 4.63 4079020 4.16 1452380 3.40 545570 158780

RoçaGrande15 4612130 3.09 4801740 3.79 9413870 3.45 1536480 3.63 1043730 179200

Other3 529000 5.48 530000 5.83 1059000 5.66 330000 6.04 192650 64070

Total 7600990 3.50 6950900 4.14 14551890 3.81 3318860 3.77 1781950 402050

Turmalina

Faina and Pontal6 339600 5.64 11 91000 5.70 1530600 5.69 120000 5.70 279870 21990

Ore Body A7 148820 3.71 1683460 5.41 1832280 5.27 554050 7.02 310600 125060

Ore Body B7 118580 4.92 481720 5.47 600300 5.36 255550 5.51 103490 45280

Ore Body C7 750860 2.76 880520 3.38 1631380 3.09 479740 4.29 162330 66180

Total 1357860 3.34 4236700 4.44 5594560 4.76 1409340 5.70 856290 258510

Total Southern

Brazil

13403230 3.49 13528660 4.14 26931890 3.94 6040440 4.30 3407930 835230

Northern Brazil

Gurupi

Cipoeiro8 491 81700 117 49181700 117 6738900 1.11 1855470 239640

ChegaTudo8 20705800 1.00 20705800 1.00 11937800 0.98 662700 376990

Total Northern

Brazil

69887500 112 69887500 1.12 18676700 1.03 2518170 616630

TOTAL IN SITU RESOURCES 96819390 1.90 24717140 1.83 5926100 1451860
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Table 2- Summary of Estimated Mineral Reserves12

Proven Average

Grade git

Probable Average Proven

Grade gil Probable

Average

Grade

git

Proven Probable

Ounces Au

Southern Brazil

Paciºncia

Santa Isabel141 2868120 3.20 790610 2.51 3658730 3.05 358920

Caete

Pi1ar151 2227670 3.42 1480930 4.14 3708600 3.71 442110

Roça Grande151 2627960 3.01 2954110 3.72 5582070 3.39 607890

Total 4855630 3.20 4435040 3.86 9290670 3.51 1050000

Turmalina

Ore Body A7 150490 3.27 1654310 5.14 1804800 4.98 289240

Ore Body RU 114980 4.44 474560 490 589540 4.81 91190

Ore Body C7 752890 2.39 890410 2.98 1643300 2.71 143200

Total 1018360 2.75 3019280 4.47 4037640 4.03 523630

Total Southern Brazil 8742110 315 8244930 3.95 16987040 3.54 1932550

Northern Brazil

Gurupi Prolect

Cipoeiro181 45043500 1.20 45043500 1.20 1734860

ChegaTudo181 18713200 0.99 18713200 0.99 593070

Total Northern Brazil 63756700 1.14 63756700 1.14 2327930

TOTAL 8742110 315 72001630 1.46 80743740 1.64 4260480

Notes

Mineral resources listed include mineral reserves

Some columns and rows may not total due to rounding

TechnoMine NI 43-101 Technical Report on the QuadrilAtero Gold Project dated December20 2004

TechnoMine NI 43-101 Technical Report on the Paciencia Gold Project Feasibility Study dated August 2007

TechnoMine NI 43-101 Technical Report on the Caetd Gold Project Amended Feasibility Study dated Dctober2g 2010

TechnoMine NI 43-101 Technical Report on the Turmalina Gold Project dated December20 2004

TechnoMine NI 43-101 Technical Report on the Turmalina Expansion Feasibility Study dated September 2008

TechnoMine NI 43-101 Technical Report on the Gurupi Project Feasibility Study dated January31 2011

Although Jaguar
has carefully prepared and verified the mineral resource and reserve figures presented herein such figures are esti

mates which are in
part

based on forward-looking information and no assurance can be
given

that the indicated level of gold will

be produced Estimated reserves may have to be recalculated based on actual production experience Market price fluctuations of

gold as well as increased production costs or reduced
recovery rates and other factors may render the

present proven
and probable

reserves unprofitable to develop at particular site or sites for periods of time See Risk Factors and Cautionary Note Regarding

Forward-Looking Statements in the Companys 2010 Annual Information Form dated March 21 2011 and available on SEDAR

and EDGAR at www.sedar.com and
www.sec.gov respectively
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the three months ended December 31 2010 the market
price

of
gold London PM Fix traded in

range
of $1313 to

$1421 and averaged $1367 This was approximately 24%
higher

than the
average price

for the three months ended December

31 2009 Gold prices were highly volatile
during

the three months ended December 31 2010 Gold
prices

have continued to be

influenced by interest rates uncertainty
in the credit and financial markets political unrest throughout

northern Africa investment

and physical demand and inflation
expectations

10%
change

in the
average

market
price

of
gold during

the three months ended

December 31 2010 would have
changed

the Companys income after income taxes by approximately $2.9 million

As previously stated the Company reports
its financial statements in US$ however

significant portion
of the Companys expenses

are incurred in either Cdn.$ or R$ The
average rates of

exchange
for the Cdn.$ per US$1.00 for the three months ended Decem

ber 31 2010 and the three months ended December 31 2009 were 1.01 and 1.06 respectively
The

average
rates of

exchange for

the R$ per US$1.00 for the three months ended December 31 2010 and the three months ended December 31 2009 were 1.70

and 1.74 respectively While the Companys costs were negatively impacted during
the

quarter as result of the
strong R$ relative

to the US$ the Companys treasury management program resulted in
significant foreign exchange

benefit to offset the increase

in cash operating costs 10%
change

in the
average R$ exchange rate during

the three months ended December 31 2010 would

have changed operating
income by approximately $5.4 million

Summary of Quarterly Results

The following chart summarizes the Companys quarterly
results of

operations
for the

previous eight quarters

unaudited

in DUOs except per share amounts

31-Dec

2010

30-Sep

2010

30-Jun

2010

31-Mar

2010

31-Dec

2009

30-Sep

2009

30-Jun

2009

31-Mar

2009

Net sales $44554 $48712 $36853 $40670 $39497 $35165 $32786 $33285

Net income loss 9474 3800 5913 4605 29381 6906 9724 4758

Basic and diluted income loss per share 0.11 0.05 0.07 0.05 0.36 0.09 012 0.07

Net sales over the periods shown above
generally trended higher due to an increase in ounces of gold sold and an increase in the

average
realized gold price Net sales declined during the quarter ended December 31 2010 due to lower production and higher

operating costs The decline in production was principally due to the need to change the mining method to lower dilution at Tur

malina
Operating costs were higher

due to stronger R$ against the US$ as well as geo-mechanical issues encountered in Ore

Body at the Turmalina
operation

and the use of lower grade ore at the new CaetØ operation during the commissioning phase

Summary of Key Operating Results

unaudited

in 000s except per share amounts

Three Months Ended

December31

Year Ended

December31

2010 2009 2010 2009

Gold sales 44554 39497 170788 140734

Ounces sold 34134 35944 140530 143698

Average sales price $/ounce 1306 1099 1215 979

Gross profit 2777 10363 12420 42583

Net income loss 9474 29381 23792 7992

Basic income loss per share 011 0.36 0.28 0.10

Diluted income loss per share 011 0.36 0.28 010

Weighted avg of shares outstanding basic 84259191 80738919 84152914 76410916

Weighted avg of shares outstanding diluted 84259191 80738919 84152914 76410916
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Quarter and Year ended December 31 2010 compared to December 31 2009

Sales in the three months ended December 31 2010 increased $5.1 million or 13% from the three months ended December 31

2009 primarily due to an increase in the
average

realized gold price The number of ounces of gold sold decreased 5% to 34134

ounces in the three months ended December 31 2010 compared to 35944 ounces in the three months ended December 31 2009

The
average

realized gold price increased to $1306 per ounce from $1099 per ounce in the same quarter
last

year

Sales in the
year

ended December 31 2010 increased $30.1 million or 21% from the
year

ended December 31 2009 primarily due

to an increase in the
average

realized gold price The number of ounces of gold sold decreased 2% to 140530 ounces in the
year

ended December 31 2010 compared to 143698 ounces in the
year

ended December 31 2009 The
average

realized gold price

increased to $1206 per ounce from $979 per ounce in the
year

ended December 31 2009

Gross profit for the three months ended December 31 2010 decreased to $2.8 million from $10.4 million for the three months

ended December 31 2009 For the
year

ended December 31 2010 gross profit decreased to $12.4 million from $42.6 millionfor

the
year

ended December 31 2009 due primarily to significantly higher operating costs caused by higher than planned dilution

The Company recngni7ed net losses of $9.5 million and $29.4 million for the three months ended December 31 2010 and 2109

respectively For the
year

ended December 31 2010 the Company recognized net loss of $23.8 million versus net loss of $8.0

million for the
year

ended December 31 2009

Review of Certain Operating Expenses and Other Income and Expenses

unaudited

in 000s

Three Months Ended

December31

Year Ended

December31

2010 2009 2010 2009

Stock based compensation 1108 7038 1571 11244

Administration 6351 5792 20600 16411

Forward derivative gain loss 816 686

Forward derivative loss

Forward fx derivative gain loss 208 707 1391 2642

Foreign.exchange gain loss 643 1235 1697 17307

Interest expense 4283 22459 16638 28847

Interest income 718 1405 3870 4203

Stock based
compensation expense varies depending upon when stock options deferred share units restricted share units and

stock appreciation rights vest and
Jaguars

share
price

The stock based compensation expense
for the three months ended Decem

ber 31 2010 includes $42000 for Deferred Share Units $692000 for Restricted Stock Units $362000 for Share
Appreciation

Rights and $12000 for stock
options

Administrative costs increased from $5.8 million
during

the three months ended December 31 2009 to $6.4 million during the

three months ended December 31 2010 and increased from $16.4 million during
the

year
ended December 31 2009 to $20.6 mil

lion for the
year

ended December 31 2010 Administration costs include legal
and

accounting costs costs to maintain offices and

required personnel and costs associated with
being publicly-traded company Given the Companys development stage

adminis

tration costs are on-track with other South American gold producers on unit of production
basis and are viewed

by management

as appropriate to achieve the Companys growth targets

During July 2010 the Company entered into limited gold collar program which is financial contract implemented to mitigate

gold price
risk in the event of an unforeseen

significant global financial event during the commissioning phase
of the CaetØ opera

tion The Company purchased gold puts
for 59600 ounces with strike price range of $1050 to $1117 per ounce The put con

tracts expired out of the money with no resulting gain or loss The Company sold calls for 60000 ounces with strike price range

of $1300 to $1475 per ounce During the
year ended December 31 2010 37500 ounces of the sold call contracts with strike

price
of $1300 per ounce were settled with the combined delivery of the Companys inventory and the purchase of 6129 ounces

of gold at net cost to the Company of $686000 The Company recognized an unrealized gain of $816000 for the three months

ended December 31 2010 and realized loss of 686000 for the
year

ended December 31 2010 The remaining sold call contracts

expired out of the money with no resulting gain or loss to the Company These collar facilities were measured at fair value on
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-I-

recurring basis using significant observable inputs fair value hierarchy level At December 31 2010 no put or call gold option

contracts were outstanding

The Company recognized an unrealized loss of $509000 for the three months ended December 31 2010 versus an unrealized

gain of $172000 for the three months ended December 31 2009 on forward foreign exchange contracts used to manage currency

cxposurc on the R$ The Company also recognized realized gain of $717000 for the three months ended December 31 2010

versus realized gain of $535000 for the three months ended December 31 2009 on forward foreign exchange contracts For

the
year

ended December 31 2010 the Company recognized an unrealized loss of $1.1 million and realized gain of $2.5 million

compared to an unrealized gain of $3.7 million and realized loss of $1.1 million for the
year

ended December 31 2009 See Risk

Management Policies Hedging

foreign exchange gain of $643000 was recognized during the three months ended December 31 2010 gain of $1.7 million for

the
year

ended December 31 2010 versus gain of $1.2 million during the three months ended December 31 2009 gain of $17.3

million for the
year

ended December 31 2009 primarily due to volatility of the R$ and Cdn.$ During the
year

ended December

31 2010 foreign exchange gains were incurred primarily due to cash on hand held in Brazil and Canada and prepaid taxes recover

able from the Brazilian tax authorities The foreign exchange gains were offset by foreign exchange
losses on future tax liabilities and

deferred compensation liabilities The foreign exchange gains and losses are due to changes in the R$ and Cdn.$ versus the US$

Interest
expense

decreased from $22.5 million during the three months ended December 31 2009 to $4.3 million during the three

months ended December 31 2010 During September 2009 the Company issued $165 million of 4.5% unsecured convertible

notes which bear interest at rate of 4.5%
per annum payable semi-annually in arrears on May and November of each year be

ginning on May 2010 and maturing on November 2014 During November 2009 the Company redeemed Cdn.$85372000

of the outstanding principal of the private placement notes at 105% of the principal amount and the redemption price of the re

maining Cdn.$878000 of outstanding principal was 102% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest The interest

expense
for the three months ended December 31 2009 includes total of $18.5 million for the redemption of the private place

ment notes related to the amortization of the remaining discount $9.2 million write-down of the private placement call option

$4.0 million and premium $4.1 million and interest $1.2 million See Cash Flow Highlights

Interest income decreased from $1.4 million during the three months ended December 31 2009 year ended December 31 2009

$4.2 million to $718000 during the three months ended December 31 2010 year ended December 31 2010 $3.9 million

Interest income was earned on deposits held in banks in Canada the U.S and Brazil

FINANCIAL CONDITION CASH FLOW LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash Flow Highlights

in 000s

Three Months Ended

December31

Year Ended

Decemher 31

2010 2009 2010 2009

Operating activities 24 1189 19631 31923

Financing activities 13209 74957 29499 151620

Investing
activities 22628 26944 130114 85500

Eftect of foreign exchange on non-U.S dollar

denominated cash and cash equivalents 559 3614 1049 2653

Increase decrease in cash for the period 9954 104326 82033 100696

Beginning cash balance 49177 225582 121256 20560

Ending cash balance1 39223 121256 39223 121256

Cash balance excludes $908000 of restricted cash on December31 2010 and $108000 at December31 2009
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At December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $39.2 million and $121.3 million

respectively

Cash flow from operating activities generated $24000 of cash during the three months ended December 31 2010 versus $1.2 mil

lion
generated during the three months ended December 31 2009 Cash flow from operating activities generated $19.6 million of

cash
during

the
year ended December 31 2010 versus $31.9 million generated during the

year
ended December 31 2009

Cash flow from financing activities generated $13.2 million of cash during the three months ended December 31 2010 and con

sumed $75.0 million
during the three months ended December 31 2009 During the

year
ended December 31 2010 financing

activities generated $29.5 million primarily as result of proceeds from bank credit facilities and during the
year

ended December

31 2009 financing activities generated $151.6 million primarily as result of an equity financing in March 2009 that generated gross

proceeds of Cdn.$ 86.3 million $66.9 million and the issuance of $165 million of 4.50% senior convertible notes in September

2009

Investing activities consumed $22.6 million of cash during the three months ended December 31 2010 $130.1 million for the year

ended December 31 2010 versus $269 million for the three months ended Decemher 31 2009 $SS million for the
year

ended

December 31 2009 The hinds were primarily used for the build-out of the CaetØ Project as well as underground development at

other
operations

The effect of foreign exchange on non-US$ denominated cash and cash equivalents was $559000 loss during the three months

ended December 31 2010 $1 million loss for the
year

ended December 31 2010 compared to $3.6 million loss for the three

months ended December 31 2009 $2.7 million gain for the
year

ended December 31 2009 This reflects the changes of the R$

and Cdn.$ versus the US$ during the respective periods

Cash Requirements 2010 Capital Spending Program
in DUOs

Three Months Ended

Dec 31 2010

Year Ended Dec 31

2010

Estimate for

2011

Turmalina 4463 25785 17299

PaciSncia 6893 29932 27266

CaetØ 10157 66017 26485

Gurupi 937 4481 48138

Other Spending1 178 5654 450

Total capital spending 22628 131869 119638

Includes construction of the central spare parts room purchase of maintenance equipment other improvements

replacements and operating management office facility spending

The Company believes that its cash held in accounts cash flow generated by operations debt and other identified sources of capital

is sufficient to finance its operations and expansions to execute on its plan
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Total
Capital Spending during the Period

in 000s

Three Months Ended

Dec 31 2010

Year Ended

Dec 31 2010

The Company has identified the
following primary uses of capital during 2011

Gurupi exploration and pre-development

sustaining capital to maintain
existing operations

and

exploration at brownfield
properties

in the Iron Quadrangle

Contractual Obligations

The Companys contractual obligations as at December 31 2010 are summarized as follows in 000s

Contractual Obligations Less than

year

-3 years 3-5 years More than

years

Total

Notes payable

Principal 26391 13622 165375 205388

Interest 9355 15499 7462 32316

Forward sales derivative liabilities

Operating lease agreements 201 201

Management agreements1

Operations 595 595

Suppliers agreements

Mine operations2 541 541

Drilling3 450 450

Asset retirement obligations4 2335 1506 1649 30970 36460

Total 39868 30627 174486 30970 275951

The remaining term of the management agreement is one year See Note 16a to the Companys annual financial statements

for the years ended December31 2010 and 2009

2The Company has the right to cancel the mine operations contract with 60 days advance notice The amount included in the

contractual obligations table represents the amount due within 60 days

3The Company has the right to cancel the drilling contract with 10 days to four months advance notice The amount included in

the contractual obligations table represents the amount due within this period

4The asset retirement obligations are not adusted for inflation and are not discounted

Capital spending excluding

exploration

17463 115860

Capital spending exploration 5165 16009

Total
capital spending 22628 131869

Amount
paid

in cash 22628 131364

Amount tinanced 505

Total capital spending 22628 131869
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Balance Sheet Highlights

in 000s

December31

2010

December31

2009

Current assets 95409 178572

Long term assets 483867 372023

Total assets 579276 550595

Current liabilities 75967 44409

Long term liabilities 178099 160290

Total liabilities 254066 204699

Working capital decreased $114.7 million from $134.2 million at December 31 2009 to $19.4 million at December 31 2010

During September 2009 the Company sold 4.50% senior convertible notes due in 2014 for
gross proceeds of $165 million See

Financial Condition Cash Flow Liquidity and Capital Resources The Company purchased its outstanding 10.5% Secured Notes

due March 23 2012 during November 2009 See Cash Flow
Highlights During the three months ended December 31 2010 the

Company paid $22.6 million for capital expenditures See Total
Capital Spending during

the Period The Company took deliberate

steps
to

reign
in non-essential spending to increase the cash

position
and

frilly expects an improvement
in the

operating
cash flow in

early 2011 During February 2011 the Company issued $103.5 million of 5.5% senior unsecured convertible notes See Subsequent

Events

Risk Management Policies Hedging

Forward Foreign Exchange
Contracts Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company manages
its

exposure to changes
in foreign exchange rates through the use of forward foreign exchange contracts

to hedge certain future transactions denominated in
foreign

currencies The Company hedges anticipated but not yet
committed

foreign currency
transactions when they are probable

and the
significant

characteristics and
expected

terms are identified

As at December 31 2010 the Company has forward
foreign exchange contracts to purchase R$ at weighted average

of R$1.7550

per $1.00 as follows

Settlement Date Amount in thousands of IJS$ Settlement amount in thousands of R$

28-Jan-il 1000 R$ 1746

25-Feb-11 1000 1735

25-Feb-11 1000 1769

30-Mar-11 1000 1745

30-Mar-11 1000 1780

5000 8775

The statement of operations includes the following amounts of unrealized and realized
gains or losses on foreign exchange

derivatives

2010 2009 2010 2009

Three Months Ended

December31

Year Ended

December31

Unrealized gain loss 509 172 1111 3701

Realized gain loss 717 535 2502 1059

Total 208 707 1391 2642
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The forward exchange contracts are considered derivative financial instruments and are used for risk management purposes
and

not for
generating trading profits The Company closely monitors exchange rates and as deemed

appropriate by management will

continue to enter into forward
currency contracts with the aim of

minimizing
adverse

changes
in the R$ and US$ relationship

The Company is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of
non-performance by two major

intemational financial institutions

handling the derivative financial instruments but does not expect
these

highly
rated

counterparties to fail to meet their
obligations

Hedge accounting
is not applied to these derivative financial instruments The unrealized

gains
and losses are recognized in the

operating
income of the Company and are primarily

result of the difference between the
spot price

of the R$ and the forward

currency contract price as at the balance sheet date

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company does not have
any

off-balance sheet investment or debt
arrangements

INCOME TAXES

The Company recorded an income tax expense of $1.8 million for the
year

ended December 31 2010 compared to an income tax

expense of $8.8 million for the year ended December 31 2009 The current income tax provision reflects current income tax

expense of $1.6 million and future income tax
expense

of $172000 This compares to current income tax of $5.0 million and

future income tax expense of $3.8 million for the
year

ended December 31 2009 The income tax expense reflects the current

taxes incurred in Brazil The Company has net operating losses NOLs which can be applied to future periods

The consolidated balance sheet reflects current tax
liability

of $16.7 million at December 31 2010 and $15.6 million at December

31 2009 and future tax
liability

of $12.6 million at December 31 2010 and $11.8 milhon at December 31 2009

The Company has
approximately $48.8 million of tax losses available for carry forward in Canada and $54.5 million of tax losses

available for
carry

forward in Brazil which can be carried forward indefinitely however only 30% of taxable income in one year can

be
applied against

the loss
carry-forward balance Approximately $20.6 million of the Brazilian non-capital loss carry

forwards has

not been
recognized in future tax assets

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company incurred fees of $1.1 million for the
year

ended December 31 2010 2009 $1.6 million 2008 $719000 from

IMS Engenharia Mineral Ltda IMSE company held by two officers of the Company with which the Company entered into

service
agreement to render senior management services The fees are included in management fees in the statement of operations

The
agreement

will expire on December 31 2011

The Company incurred
occupancy

fees of $180000 for the
year

ended December 31 2010 2009 $180000 2008 $180000

to Brazilian Resources Inc BZI corporate shareholder for use of administrative offices As at December 31 2010 prepaid

expenses
and sundry assets includes $70000 from BZI relating to leasehold

improvements paid by the Company December 31

2009 $126000

In September 2010 the Companys offices in Belo Horizonte moved to new location The Company recognized rental income

of $29000 from BZI for the use of administrative offices for the
year

ended December 31 2010 2009 $nil 2008 $nil As at

December 31 2010 prepaid expenses
and sundry assets includes $29000 from BZI relating to rental income December 31 2009

$nil The Company also incurred
consulting

fees and administrative service charges
of $140000 from BZI for the

year
ended

December 31 2010 2009 $603000 2008 $344000 The
occupancy costs consulting

fees and administrative service fees are

included in the statement of
operations As at December 31 2010 accounts payable and accrued liabilities includes $nil due to BZI

December 31 2009 $58000

The Company recognized rental income of $nil from PrometÆlica Mineraçªo Ltda PML and $nil from PrometÆlica Centro

Oeste Ltda PCO for the
years

ended December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 2008 $9000 from PML and $34000

from PCO for temporarily idle
equipment

and the use of administrative offices PCO is controlled by IMS founding shareholder

of the Company As at December 31 2010 prepaid expenses and sundry assets includes $nil from PML and $16000 from PCO
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December 31 2009 $nil from PML and $15000 from PCO During 2010 and 2009 the Company received $nil 2008

$30000 of royalty income relating to the NSR

On August 11 2008 PML filed judicial restructuring
in Belo Horizonte state of Minas Gerais Brazil The

primary
shareholders

of PML BZI and IMS provided guarantee
of PMLs obligation to Mineraçao Serras do Oeste Ltda MSOL 100% owned sub

sidiary of the Company This
guarantee

will ensure the
recovery

of the NSR due from PML if PML is unable to pay
the Company

As at December 31 2010 the amount of the obligation is approximately $1.0 million

The Companys subsidiaries MSOL and Mineraçªo Turmalina Ltda were required to
pay an employment claim of former em

ployee who performed work for MSOL then owned by BZI and other BZI companies BZI has guaranteed the amount owed to

the Company of R$378000 $227000 As at December 31 2010 prepaid expenses
and sundry assets include $227000 receivable

from BW Mineraçªo Ltda wholly owned subsidiary of BZI December 31 2009 $217000

The above related
party

transactions are in the normal course of
operations

and have been measured at the exchange amount agreed

upon between the related parties

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 2011 the Company closed $103.5 million offering of 5.5% senior unsecured convertible notes

The Company received net proceeds of approximately $99.3 million The notes bear interest at rate of 5.5%
per annum payable

semi-annually in arrears on March 31 and September 30 each
year beginning on September 30 2011 and maturing on March 31

2016 The notes will have an initial conversion rate of 132.4723 Jaguar common shares
per $1000 principal amount of converted

notes representing an initial conversion price of approximately US$7.55
per common share which is approximately 137.5o of the

closing price
of

Jaguar common shares on the New York Stock Exchange on February 2011 The conversion rate is
subject to

certain anti-dilution adjustments and adjustments in connection with specified corporate events The notes will be convertible any

time prior to maturity Upon conversion the Company may in lieu of delivering its common shares elect to
pay

or deliver as the

case may be cash or combination of cash and common shares in
respect

of the converted notes Jaguar will be required to make

an offer to repurchase the notes for cash upon the occurrence of certain fundamental changes

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation
of its consolidated financial statements requires the Company to use estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of assets and liabilities as well as revenues and expenses The Companys accounting policies are described in

Note to its consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31 2010 The Companys accounting policies relating

to work-in-progress inventory valuation and amortization of property plant and equipment mineral exploration projects
and site

reclamation and closure accruals are critical accounting estimates that are subject to assumptions regarding reserves recoveries

future gold prices
and future mining activities

Gold in process
and ore in stockpiles are stated at the lower of

average production cost and net realizable value Production costs

include labor benefits material and other product costs These costs are charged to earnings
and are included in cost of sales The

assumptions
used in the

impairment assessment of gold in process inventories include estimates of gold contained in the ore stacked

assumptions
of the amount of gold stacked that is expected to be recovered and an assumption of the gold price expected to be real

ized when the
gold is recovered If these estimates or assumptions prove to be inaccurate the Company could be required to write-

down the recorded value of its work-in-progress inventories which would reduce the Companys earnings and working capital

In addition GAAP requires the Company to consider at the end of each accounting period whether or not there has been an im

pairment
of the

capitalized mineral exploration projects property plant and equipment For producing properties this assessment

is based on expected future cash flows to be generated from the location For non-producing properties this assessment is based on

whether factors that may indicate the need for write-down are present If the Company determines there has been an impairment

because its prior estimates of future cash flows have proven to be inaccurate due to reductions in the price of gold increases in

the costs of
production reductions in the amount of reserves expected to be recovered or otherwise or because the Company has

determined that the deferred costs of non-producing properties may not be recovered based on current economics or permitting

considerations the Company would be required to write-down the recorded value of its mineral exploration projects property

plant
and equipment which would reduce the Companys earnings and net assets
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The Companys mining and exploration activities are subject to various laws and regulations governing the protection of the envi

ronment In general these laws and regulations are continually changing and over lime becoming more restrictive which impacts

the cost of retiring assets at the end of their useful life The Company recognizes managements estimate of the fair value of liabili

ties for asset retirement obligations in the period in which they are incurred corresponding increase to the carrying amount of

the related asset where one is identifiable is recorded and depreciated over the life of the asset Where related asset is not easily

identifiable with liability the change in fair value over the course of the
year

is expensed Overtime the
liability

will be increased

each period to reflect the interest element accretion reflected in its initial measurement at fair value and will also be adjusted for

changes in the estimate of the amount timing and cost of the work to be carried out Additionally future changes to environmental

laws and regulations could increase the extent of reclamation and remediation work required to be performed by the Company

The Companys mining properties are depleted and depreciated on unit-of-production basis which bases its calculations on the

expected amount of recoverable reserves If these estimates of reserves prove
to be inaccurate or if the Company revises its mine

plan due to reductions in the price of gold or unexpected production cost increases and as result the amount of reserves expected

to be recovered are reduced then the Company would be required to write-down the recorded value of its mining properties and

to increase the amount of future depletion and amortization expense both of which would reduce the Companys eamings and net

assets

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES INCLUDING INITIAL ADOPTION

The Companys audited financial statements for the
year

ended December 31 2010 were prepared following accounting policies

consistent with the Companys audited and consolidated financial statements and notes thereto for the
year

ended December 31

2010

Accounting Principles Issued but not
yet Implemented

Business cnmbinatinns

In January 2009 the CICA issued Section 1582 Business Combinations effective for fiscal
years begin

ning on or after January 2011 Earlier adoption of Section 1582 is permitted This pronouncement

further aligns Canadian GAAP with US GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards IFRS
and changes the accounting for business combinations in number of areas It establishes principles

and

requirements governing how an acquiring company recognizes and measures in its financial statements

identifiable assets acquired liabilities assumed any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and

goodwill

acquired The section also establishes disclosure requirements that will enable users of the acquiring com

panys financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of its business combinations

ii Consolidated financial statements and non-controlling interests

In January 2009 the CICA issued Section 1601 Consolidated Financial Statements and Section 1602

Non-Controlling Interests effective for fiscal
years beginning on or after January 2011 Earlier adop

tion of these recommendations is permitted These pronouncements further align Canadian GAAP with

US GAAP and IFRS Sections 1601 and 1602 change the accounting and reporting for ownership inter

ests in subsidiaries held by parties other than the
parent Non-controlling interests are to be

presented

in the consolidated balance sheet within shareholders equity but
separate

from the parents equity
The

amount of consolidated net income attributable to the
parent

and to the non-controlling interest is to be

clearly identified and presented on the face of the consolidated statement of income In addition these

pronouncements
establish standards for change in parents ownership interest in subsidiary and the

valuation of retained non-controlling equity
investments when subsidiary is deconsolidated They also

establish reporting requirements for providing sufficient disclosures that clearly identify and distinguish

between the interests of the
parent

and the interest of the non-controlling owners
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iii Financial instruments recognition and measurement

On July 2009 the CICA amended Section 3855 with regard to determining when
prepayment option

in host debt instrument is closely related to the host instrument and the amendment is effective for fiscal

years beginning on or after
January

2011 The amendment states that if the exercise
price

of prepay

ment option compensates
the lender for an amount equivalent to the

present
value of the lost interest for

the
remaining

term of the host instrument the feature is considered closely related to the host contract in

which it is embedded

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS IFRS
On February 13 2008 the CICA Accounting Standards Board AcSB confirmed that the changeover to IFRS from Canadian

GAAP will be required for publicly accountable enterprises for interim and annual financial statements effective for fiscal
years

be

ginning on or after January 2011 including comparatives for 2010 The objective is to improve financial reporting by having one

single set of accounting standards that are comparable with other entities on an intemational basis

The Company commenced its IFRS conversion project during 2008 and established formal project governance
structure to moni

tor the
progress

and critical decisions to IFRS Regular reporting is provided by the project team to the Audit Committee of the

Board of Directors

The Companys conversion plan is comprehensive and consists of four phases preliminary study evaluation development and

implementation

The preliminary study involved high level review of the major differences between current Canadian GAAP and IFRS as related

to the Companys accounting policies

The Evaluation and Development phases involve the development of detailed project plan the completion of site visits the comple

tion of analyses of the differences between the Companys accounting policies and IFRS to provide basis for accounting pohcy

recommendations the establishment of an IFRS Policy Committee impact analysis of IT
systems development of strategy for

dual Canadian GAAP and IFRS reporting during 2010 and changeover to IFRS in 2011 the assessment of the impact of accounting

and other business
process changes on internal controls the review of compensation plans debt

agreements
and other contractual

arrangements and the delivery of detailed IFRS training to key finance and other personnel

The Implementation phase involves the implementation of changes to our information
systems

and business
processes

as identified

through the evaluation and development phases of the changeover plan Significant implementation phase milestones include the

development of IFRS compliant financial models budgeting and
reporting processes

the implementation of our 2010 dual report

ing systems strategy the amendment and testing of internal controls over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures

impacted by accounting policy changes the implementation of our intemal and external communication plans and the preparation

of January 2010 opening balance sheet and 2010 comparative data under IFRS with reconciliations to Canadian GAAP The

implementation phase will culminate in the preparation of our financial
reporting

under IFRS beginning in 2011

The Company has identified the areas noted below as those expected to have the most significant impact on our financial state

ments These areas do not
represent complete list of expected changes As changes to Canadian GAAP and IFRS standards may

occur prior to the changeover date the differences and impacts described below may be subject to change

25



The Company performed the evaluation and assessment of IFRS First-time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting

Standards IFRS with the
purpose

of selecting optional exemptions allowed to the Company upon transition to IFRS IFRS

generally requires that an entity apply all IFRS effective at the end of its first IFRS reporting period retrospectively with specific

mandatory exemptions and limited number of optional exemptions The Company expects to elect the following optional exemp
tions which may have significant impact on the Companys results

to apply IFRS Business Combinations prospectively from January 2010 the Transition

Date

to apply the borrowing cost exemption and apply lAS 23 Borrowing Costs prospectively

from the Transition Date

other available exemptions continue to be evaluated including the exemption related to de

commissioning liabilities asset retirement obligations

Property plant and equipment Separate accounting for
components

of
property plant and equipment is applied more broadly

under IFRS Costs are allocated to significant parts of an asset if the useful lives differ and each
part

is then separately depreciated

Impairment of property plant and equipment Under Canadian GAAP whenever the estimated future cash flows on an

undiscounted basis of property is less than the carrying amount of the
property an impairment loss is measured and recorded

based on fair values Under IFRS lAS 36 Impairment of Assets lAS 36 requires an impairment charge to be recognized if

the recoverable amount determined as the higher of the estimated fair value less costs to sell or value in use is less than the car

rying amount The impairment charge under IFRS is equal to the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable

amount The difference in testing and determining an impairment may result in more frequent charges where carrying values

of assets may have been supported under Canadian GAAP on an undiscounted cash flow basis but cannot be supported on dis

counted cash flow basis

lAS 36 also requires the reversal of
any impairment losses where circumstances requiring the impairment charge have been changed

and reversed Canadian GAAP does not permit the reversal of impairment losses in
any

circumstance

Exploration and evaluation IFRS Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources allows us to either develop new

policy
for

exploration and evaluation expenditures consistent with IFRS requirements or continue to follow the Companys existing

policy

Decommissioning liabilities asset retirement obligations Under IFRS liability
must be recognized at time when the

entity
becomes

legally or constructively obliged to rehabilitate disturbance resulting from mining activities while under Canadian

GAAP liability
is only recognized when the entity is legally bound Discount rates used should reflect the risks specific to the

decommissioning provision Unlike IFRS under Canadian GAAP discount rates for asset retirement obligations are based on the

entitys credit-adjusted risk-free rate IFRS requires re-measurement of the
liability

at each reporting date whereas Canadian GAAP

requires re-measurement of the
liability

in the event of changes in the amount or timing of cash flows required to settle the obliga

tion Over and above this lAS 37 Provisions Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets requires the re-measurement of the provision for

reclamation and rehabilitation if there is change in the current market-based discount rate However under Canadian GAAP HB

3110 Asset Retirement Obligations the provision for reclamation and rehabilitation is not adjusted for changes in the discount rate

Share-based payments In certain circumstances IFRS requires different measurement of stock-based compensation related

to cash-settled share-based
compensation than current Canadian GAAP While there is

convergence
in that share-based pay

ments are recognized as an expense there are number of measurement differences IFRS requires that cash-settled share-based

payments
be accounted for

using fair value method as opposed to an intrinsic value under Canadian GAAP

IFRS Shore Based Payments is applied for applicable liabilities arising from cash-settled share-based payment transactions that existed

at January 2010 Under Canadian GAAP the
liability

for cash-settled share-based payments is accrued based upon the intrinsic

value mark-to-market of the award However under IFRS the
liability

for cash-settled share-based awards is measured at fair value

of the vested awards
using the Black-Scholes valuation model Changes in fair value are recognized in the period of change until the

liability is settled

26



Financial instruments Under IFRS lAS 39 Financial Instruments Recagnitian and Measurement the conversion option component

of the convertible notes is treated as derivative
liability

carried at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in the statement of

operations
and

comprehensive
loss The remaining portion of the net proceeds is allocated to the notes payable component of the

convertible note issuance and is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method

Under Canadian GAAP the notes payable component of the convertible note issuance was measured at fair value and the remaining

portion
of the net proceeds was allocated to contributed surplus

Income taxes lAS 12 Taxes contains different
guidance to the recognition and measurement of future income taxes It requires

the
recognition

of future taxes in situations not required under Canadian GAAP Specifically
future tax

liability asset is recog

nized for
exchange gains

and losses
relating to foreign non-monetary assets and liabilities that are re-measured into the functional

currency using
historical

exchange rates

Canadian GAAP
requires

that the current and long-term portions of future income tax assets and future income tax liabilities be

shown
separately on the financial statements whereas IFRS does not

Preliminary Unaudited Impact of Adopting IFRS

Standards under IFRS are based on conceptual framework similar to Canadian GAAP however significant differences exist in

certain matters of
recognition measurement and disclosure The adoption of IFRS will have an impact on the consolidated balance

sheet and statement of income The Companys opening balance sheet will reflect the fair value for
decommissioning

liabilities as
set retirement obligation measurement and classification of the notes payable components

and the
adjusted liability resulting

from

cash-settled share-based
compensation

All of the
changes to the opening balance sheet will

require
that

corresponding tax asset

or liability
be established based on the resultant differences between the carrying

value of assets and liabilities and their associated

tax bases Certain income statement items such as amortization expense accretion and share-based
compensation expense are also

expected to be impacted

The Companys estimate of the
preliminary

unaudited
impact

of the conversion to IFRS on the
opening

balance sheet at January

2010 will decrease
opening

retained
earnings by approximately $29.8 million The following summarizes the

preliminary quantita

tive impact
of differences between Canadian GAAP and IFRS in the Companys more significant accounting policies

and from its

transition elections from Canadian GAAP to IFRS as of
January 2010

Unaudited

Summary of Opening Balance Sheet Impact

Assets

Dr Cr
Liabilities

Dr Cr

Contributed Surplus

Dr Cr
Opening R/E

Dr Cr

Provision for reclamat ion 1.758 2323 565

Share-based compensation 260 260

Notes payable 74055 40861 33194

Incometaxes 8330 11371 3041

10088 60621 40861 29848

The Company continues to monitor standards development as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the

AcSB as well as regulatory developments as issued
by the Canadian Securities Administrators which may affect the timing nature

or disclosure of the Companys adoption of IFRS

Information Systems In order to facilitate the
compilation of financial information required for IFRS reporting and disclosures

management has made
appropriate modifications to its consolidation

system
and

processes
Those changes which have been imple

mented generally required minor changes to reports or data analysis to ensure that additional information required for disclosures

under IFRS which were not currently collected under Canadian GAAP were appropriately tracked for IFRS
purposes

Financial Disclosures Annual
IFRS-compliant financial statement notes disclosures were drafted and reviewed with the

Companys audit committee during the fourth quarter of 2010 The Company does not anticipate significant increase in disclo

sure resulting
from the

adoption of IFRS and is continuing to assess the level of disclosure required as well as any
further systems

changes
that may be

necessary
to gather and

process
the information
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Training Training
of IFRS requirements

with all management levels concerned continued
during 2010 including training

of

Directors and other concerned
parties Management training will continue during 2011 IFRS training program requirements

for

other stakeholders of the Company are being
assessed

NON-GAAP PERFORMANCE MEASURES

The Company has included the non-GAAP performance measures Cash
Operating

Cost
per tonne processed Cash

Operating
Cost

per ounce processed and Cash
Operating Margin per ounce of

gold
in this document These non-GAAP performance measures

do not have
any

standardized meaning prescribed by GAAP and therefore may not be comparable to similar measures presented

by other companies The Company believes that in addition to conventional measures prepared in accordance with GAAP cer

tain investors use this information to evaluate the Companys performance Accordingly they are intended to provide additional

information and should not be considered in isolation or as substitute for measures of performance prepared in accordance with

GAAP More specifically management believes that these
figures are useful indicator to investors and management of mines

performance as they provide measure of the mines cash
margin per tonne/ounce by comparison

of the cash
operating costs

per tonne/ounce to the
price

of
gold

the trend in costs as the mine matures and an internal benchmark of performance to

allow for comparison against
other mines The definitions for these

performance measures and reconciliation of the non-GAAP

measures to reported GAAP measures are as follows

Cash Operating Margin per oz of gold Three Months Ended Year Ended

December 31 2010 December31 2010

Averagesalespriceperozofgold 1306 1215

less

Cash operating cost per oz of gold produced 762 732

equals

Cash operating margin per oz of gold 544 483
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Summary of Cash Operating Cost per tonne processed Three Months Ended

December31 2010

Year Ended

December 312010

Production costs per statement of operations1 25485000 101289000

Change in
inventory2 1715000 2881000

Operational cost of gold produced3 27200000 98408000

divided by

Tonnes processed 425000 1567000

equals

Cost per tonne processed 64.00 62.80

Turmalina Cash Operating Cost per tonne processed Three Months Ended

December 31 2010

Year Ended

December31 2010

Production costs 9236000 47526000

Change in inventory2 301000 2917000

Operational cost of gold produced3 9537000 44609000

divided by

Tonnes processed 143000 692000

equals

Cost per tonne processed 66.70 64.50

Caete Cash Operating Cost per tonne processed Three Months Ended

December 31 2010

Year Ended

December31 2010

Production costs 8010000 13414000

Change in inventory2 1310000 2287000

Operational cost of gold produced3 9320000 15701000

divided by

lonnes processed 147000 249000

equals

Cost per tonne processed 63.40 6310

Paciencia Cash Operating Cost per tonne processed

Production costs

Change in inventory2

Operational cost of gold produced3

divided by

Tonnes processed

Three Months Ended

December 31 2010

8239000

104000

8343000

135000

Year Ended

December 31 2010

40349000

2251000

38098000

equals

Cost per tonne processed 61.80

626000

60.90
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Turmalina Plant Cash Operating Cost per oz produced

Production costs

Change in inventory2

Operational cost ot gold produced3

divided by

Gold produced oz

Cost per oz of gold produced

Gold produced oz

Three Months Ended

December 31 2010

9236000

1000

9237000

899

10275

Year Ended

December 31 2010

47526000

1473000

46053000

equals

59481

774

Summary of Cash Operating Cost per oz of gold produced Three Months Ended

December 31 2010

Year Ended

December31 2010

Production costs per statement of operations1 25485000 101289000

Change in inventory2 943000 370000

Operational cost of gold produced3 26428000 100919000

divided by

Gold produced oz 34682 137867

equals

Cost per oz of gold produced 762 732

Caete Cash Operating Cost per oz produced Three Months Ended

December31 2010

Year Ended

December 31 2010

Production costs 8010000 13414000

Change in inventory2 512000 1720000

Operational cost of gold produced3 8522000 15134000

divided by

Gold produced oz 10599 19099

equals

Cost per oz of gold produced 804 792

PaciŒncia Plant Cash Operating Cost per oz produced

Production costs

Change in inventory2

Operational cost of gold produced3

divided by

Production costs do not include cost of goods sold sdjustment of approximately $4.0 million royalties of $1.2 million snd CFEM tax of $458000 for lhe

three months ended December31 2010 snd cost of goods sold sdjustment of spproximately $11.0 million royslties
of $5.1 million snd CFEM tax of$ 1.7

million for the year ended December31 2010 The cost of goods sold adjustment includes idle capacity costs of $3.4 million for the three months ended

December31 2010 and $8.4 million for the year ended December31 2010

2Under the Companys revenue recognition policy revenue is recognized when legal title passes Since total cash operating costs are calculated on

production basis this change reflects the portion of gold production for which revenue has not been recognized in the pedod

3The basis for calculating cost per ounce produced includes the change to gold in process inventosy whereas the cost per tonne processed does not

Three Months Ended

December 31 2010

8239000

430000

8669000

13808

Year Ended

December 31 2010

40349000

617000

39732000

59287
.1

equals

Cost per oz of gold produced 628 670
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DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and
maintaining system

of disclosure control and procedures to pro
vide reasonable assurance that all material information relating to the Company is gathered and reported to senior management on

timely basis so that appropriate decisions can be made regarding public disclosure

Management is also responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate intemal controls over financial reporting to provide rea

sonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting

and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes

in accordance with GAAP

As of December 31 2010 the Company evaluated its disclosure controls and procedures and intemal control over financial report

ing Based on that evaluation the President and Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the

design and operation of these disclosure controls and procedures over financial
reporting were effective There have not been

any

significant changes in intemal controls for 2010

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

The Companys common shares are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange and the New York Stock Exchange

At March 21 2011 the Company has 84373648 issued and outstanding common shares as well as 3777500 stock options

outstanding

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this MDA constitute Forward-Looking Statements within the meaning of the U.S Private Securities

Litigation
Reform Act of 1995 and Canadian securities legislation

These
Forward-Looking Statements include among others

statements concerning
the Companys future

objectives measured and indicated resources and
proven

and
probable reserves their

average grade
the commencement period

of
production

cash
operating costs

per
ounce and

completion
dates of

feasibility studies

gold production
and sales

targets capital expenditure costs future profitability and growth in reserves Forward-Looking
State

ments can be identified
by

the use of words such as are expected is forecast is targeted approximately or variations of

such words and
phrases or statements that certain actions events or results may could would might or will be taken

occur or be achieved
Forward-Looking Statements involve known and unknown risks uncertainties and other factors which may

cause the actual results or performance to be
materially

different from any
future results or performance expressed or implied by

the
Forward-Looking Statements

These factors include the inherent risks involved in the
exploration

and
development

of mineral
properties

the uncertainties in-

volved in
interpreting drilling

results and other
geological data fluctuating gold prices

and
monetary exchange rates the

possibility

of
project cost delays

and overruns or unanticipated costs and
expenses

uncertainties relating to the
availability

and costs of financ

ing
needed in the future uncertainties related to production rates timing

of
production

and the cash and total costs of production

changes in applicable
laws

including
laws related to mining development

environmental
protection

and the
protection

of the health

and
safety

of mine workers the
availability

of labor and equipment the
possibility

of labor strikes and work
stoppages

and changes

in
general economic conditions

Although
the Company has

attempted to identify important
factors that could cause actual actions

events or results to differ
materially

from those described in Forward-Looking Statements there may be other factors that could

cause actions events or results to differ from those
anticipated

estimated or intended

These
Forward-Looking Statements represent

the Companys views as of the date of this MDA The Company anticipates
that

subsequent events and developments may cause the Companys views to change The Company does not undertake to update any

Forward-Looking Statements either written or oral that
may be made from time to time by or on behalf of the Company sub

sequent to the date of this discussion other than as required by
law For discussion of

important
factors

affecting
the Company

including
fluctuations in the

price
of

gold
and

exchange rates uncertainty in the calculation of mineral resources competition

uncertainty concerning geological
conditions and

governmental regulations
and

assumptions underlying
the Companys Forward

Looking Statements see the CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS and RISK FAC

TORS as filed in the Companys Annual Information Form for the
year

ended December 31 2010 filed on SEDAR and available at
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www.sedar.com and its filings including the Companys Annual Report on Form 40-F for the year ended December 31 2010 filed

with the U.S Securities and
Exchange Commission which are available on EDGAR at

www.sec.gov
Further information about the

Company is available on its corporate website www.jaguarmining.com

CAUTIONARY NOTE TO U.S INVESTORS CONCERNING ESTIMATES OF INFERRED

AND MEASURED AND INDICATED RESOURCES

This document includes the term inferred resources and measured and indicated resources The Company advises U.S in-

vestors that while such terms are recognized and permitted under Canadian regulations the U.S Securities and Exchange Com
mission does not recognize them U.S Investors are cautioned not to assume that

any part
of all of the mineral deposits in these

categories will ever be converted into
proven or probable reserves

Inferred resources have
great

amount of
uncertainty as to their existence and

great uncertainty as to their economic and legal

feasibility It cannot be assumed that all or any part
of an inferred mineral resource will ever be upgraded to higher category

Under Canadian rules estimates of inferred mineral resources may not form the basis of feasibility or other economic studies U.S

investors are cautioned not to assume that
any part or all of an inferred resource exists or is economically or legally mineable
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GLOSSARYOF MINING TERMS

Carbon-in-leach

gold recovery process
in which slurry of gold-bearing ore carbon and cyanide are mixed together The cyanide leaches the gold

which is then immediately adsorbed and in separated operation elution separated from the carbon in stripping vessels

Carbon-in-pulp

Similar to carbon-in-leach
process

but
initially

the slurry is subjected to cyanide leaching on separate
tanks followed by carbon-in-

pulp Carbon-in-leach is simultaneous
process

Conversion factors

The mass area and grade below are commonly used in the
gold industry

Their conversion factors are also provided below

To Convert To SI Multiply By

Imperial Meastu-ement Units Measurement Units

Acres Hectares 0.404b86

Feet Metres 0.30480

Miles Kilometres 1.609344

Ounces troy Grams 31.1035

Pounds
Kilograms

0.454

Short tons Tonnes 0.907185

Troy ounces per ton Grams per tonne 34.2857

Cut-off grade

The minimum metal
grade at which tonne of rock can be processed on an economic basis

Deposit

mineralized body which has been physically delineated by sufficient drilling trenching and/or underground work and found to

contain sufficient
average grade of metal or metals to warrant further exploration and/or development expenditures

such deposit

does not qualify as commercially mineable ore body or as containing mineral reserves until final
legal technical and economic

factors have been resolved

Development or mine development

Driving openings to access the mineral reserve in an underground mine

Diamond or core drill

type
of

rotary
drill in which the

cutting
is done by abrasion rather than

percussion
The cutting bit is set with diamonds and is

attached to the end of long hollow rods through which water is pumped to the
cutting

face The drill cuts core of rock which is

recovered in long cylindrical sections an inch or more in diameter

Dilution

The effect of waste or low-grade ore being included unavoidably in the mined ore lowering the recovered grade

DorØ

The
precious

metals product of the smelter containing mainly gold
and silver which

requires
additional refining to high purity gold

Drifting

Driving
of tunnels

through
rock

usually on horizontal basis

Feasibifity study

detailed report showing the feasibility of placing prospective ore body or deposit of minerals within mineral property into

production This report typically includes inter alia the specific portion or portions of the
property

that should be included in

development block conclusions and recommendations regarding any adjustments that should be made to the boundaries of devel

opment block description of the work to be performed in order to develop the mineral resources within the development block

and to construct mine or mines mineral processing plant or plants and their mine/plant related facilities on the development

block the estimated capital and operating costs thereof proposed schedule for the timing of development and mine construction

and an assessment of the impact of the operation and the information obtained and evaluations made in respect thereof
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Grade

The concentrations of metal or valuable mineral in body of rock usually expressed as percentage or in
grams per tonne or ounces

per
tonne

Heap leaching

process whereby gold
is extracted

by heaping broken ore on sloping impermeable pads and repeatedly spraying the heaps with

weak cyanide solution which leaches the gold content The gold-laden solution is collected for gold recovery

Indicated mineral resource

An indicated mineral resource is that
part

of mineral resource for which
quantity grade or quality density shape and physical

characteristics can be estimated with level of confidence sufficient to allow the
appropriate application of technical and economic

parameters to support
mine

planning
and evaluation of the economic viability of the deposit The estimate is based on detailed

and reliable
exploration

and
testing

information
gathered through appropriate techniques from locations such as outcrops trenches

pits workings
and drill holes that are spaced closely enough

for
geological

and
grade continuity

to be reasonably assumed

Inferred mineral resource

An inferred mineral resource is that
part

of mineral resource for which
quantity

and
grade or quality can be estimated on the basis

of
geological

evidence and limited
sampling

and
reasonably

assumed but not verified geological
and

grade continuity
The estimate

is based on limited information and
sampling gathered through appropriate techniques

from locations such as outcrops trenches

pits workings
and drill holes

Measured mineral resource

measured mineral resource is that part of mineral resource for which quantity grade or quality density shape and physical

characteristics are so well established that they can be estimated with confidence sufficient to allow the
appropriate application of

technical and economic parameters to support production planning and evaluation of the economic viability of the deposit The

estimate is based on detailed and reliable exploration sampling and testing information gathered through appropriate techniques

from locations such as outcrops trenches pits workings and drill holes that are spaced closely enough to confirm both geological

and grade continuity

Mineralization

Mineral-bearing rock the minerals may have been either part of the original rock unit or injected at later time

Mineral reserve

mineral reserve is the economically mineable
part

of measured or indicated mineral resource demonstrated
by at least pre

liminary feasibility study This study must include adequate information on mining processing metallurgical economic and other

relevant factors that demonstrate at the time of reporting that economic extraction can be justified
mineral reserve including

diluting materials and allowances for losses that may occur when the material is mined

Mineral resource

mineral resource is concentration or occurrence of natural solid inorganic or fossilized organic material in or on the earths

crust in such form or quantity
and of such grade or quality that has reasonable

prospects
for economic extraction The location

quantity grade geological characteristics and
continuity

of mineral resource are known estimated or interpreted
from

specific

geological evidence and knowledge

NI 43-101

Canadian National Instrument 43-101 Standards of Disclosure fur Mineral Projects of the Canadian Securities Regulators

Ore

Rock mass generally containing
metallic and non-metallic minerals that can be mined and processed at profit

Ounce troy
All ounces referred herein are troy ounces Despite the worlds gradual conversion to the metric system

the
troy ounce remains

fixture of the gold industry and the most important basis for expressing quotations of most gold
markets One troy ounce equals

approximately 31.1
grams

in mass There are 32.15 troy ounces in kilogram
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Probable mineral reserve

probable mineral reserve is the
economically mineable part of an indicated and in some circumstances measured mineral

resource demonstrated by at least
preliminary feasibility study This study must include adequate information on mining pro

cessing metallurgical economic and other relevant factors that demonstrate at the time of
reporting that economic extraction

can be justified

Proven mineral reserve

proven
mineral reserve is the

economically mineable part of measured mineral resource demonstrated by at least
prelimi

nary feasibility study
This

study must include
adequate information on mining processing metallurgical economic and other

relevant factors that demonstrate at the time of reporting that economic extraction is justified

Qualified Person or QP
An individual who in accordance with NI 43-101 is an engineer or geoscientist with at least five

years
of

experience in mineral

exploration mine development or operation mineral project assessment or
any

combination of these has experience relevant

to the subject matter of the mineral project and the technical report and is member in good standing of recognized profes

sional association

Ramp
An inclined underground tunnel that provides access to mineralized body for exploration ventilation and/or mining purposes

in

underground exploratory works or mine

Reclamation

The
process by which lands disturbed as result of mining activity are reclaimed back to beneficial land use Reclamation activ

ity
includes the removal of buildings equipment machinery and other physical remnants of mining closure of tailings impound

ments leach pads and other mine features and contouring covering and revegetation of waste rock piles and other disturbed

areas

Recoverable Reserves

Recoverable reserves represent the quantity of gold that can be recovered i.e mined from existing gold resources

Plant Recovery Rate Metallurgical Recovery

The
percentage

of valuable metal in the mill feed ore that is recovered by metallurgical treatment
process

Refractory Qre

Mineralization in which much of the gold is encapsulated in sulfides and/or other minerals and is not readily amenable to dissolu

tion leaching by cyanide solutions unlike oxidized ore even with fine grinding

Reserves and Resources

The Companys classification of mineral reserves and resources and the subcategories of each conforms with definitions adopted

by the Canadian Institute of Mining Metallurgy and Petroleum Council on August 20 2000 which are in accordance with Cana

dian Securities Administrators National Instrument 43-10 dated November 17 2000

Stockpile

Broken ore heaped on surface or prepared areas underground pending treatment or shipment

Stope

Working place in an underground mine where ore is extracted

Tailings

The material that remains after all
economically

recoverable metals or minerals of economic interest has been removed from the

ore through milling
and

processing

Ton

ton or short ton is British
imperial measure of

weight equivalent to 2000 pounds

Tonne

tonne or metric tonne is about 10% greater in weight than short ton and equivalent in weight to 1000 kilograms or 2205

pounds

Waste

Barren rock in mine or mineralized material that is too low in grade to be mined and milled at profit
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31 2010 AND 2009
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MANAGEMENTS RESPONSIBILITY

FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The
accompanying

consolidated financial statements of
Jaguar Mining Inc and all the information contained in this annual

report

are the
responsibility

of management and have been
approved by

the Board of Directors These financial statements and all other

information have been
prepared by management in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in Canada Some

amounts included in the financial statements are based on managements best estimates and have been derived with careful judg

ment In
fulfilling its responsibilities management has

developed
and maintains system

of intemal controls These controls

ensure that transactions are authorized assets are safeguarded
from loss or unauthorized use and financial records are reliable for

the
purpose

of
preparing

financial statements The Board of Directors carries out its responsibilities
for the financial statements

through the Audit Committee The Audit Committee periodically reviews and discusses financial
reporting matters with the Com

panys auditors KPMG LLP as well as with management These financial statements have been audited
by KPMG LLP Chartered

Accountants on behalf of the shareholders

Daniel Titcomb James Roller

President and CEO Chief Financial Officer

March 21 2011
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the Shareholders of Jaguar Mining Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Jaguar Mining Inc which comprise the consolidated

balance sheets as at December 31 2010 and 2009 the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss cash flows and

shareholders equity for each of the
years

in the three
year period ended December 31 2010 and notes comprising summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

Managements Responsibilipfar the Cansalidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with

Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary

to enable

the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error

Auditars Respansibiliçy

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits We conducted our audits

in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements The procedures selected depend on our judgment including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of

the consolidated financial statements whether due to fraud or error In making those risk assessments we consider internal control

relevant to the
entitys preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our audit

opinion

Opinian

In our opinion
these consolidated financial statements present faidy in all material respects the financial

position ofJagiiar Mining

Inc as at December 31 2010 and 2009 and its consolidated results of operations and its consolidated cash flows for each of the
years

in the
three-year period ended December 31 2010 in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles

Chartered Accountants Licensed Public Accountants

Toronto Canada

March 21 2011
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Expressed in thousands of U.S dollars

Liabilities and Shareholders
Equity

Current liabilities

Accounts
payable

and accrued liabilities

Notes payable

Income taxes payable

Asset retirement obligations

Deferred
compensation liability

Other 1h1H

Shareholders
equity

Common shares

Stock
options

Contributed
surplus

$27853

26130

16677

2167

2436

704

365667

14762

42028

76561

Assets

Current assets

December 31

2010

December 31

2009

Cash and cash
equivalents Note 17 39223 121256

Inventory Note 31495 36986

Prepaid expenses
and

sundry assets Note 24523 19050

ITnreili7ed foreign evrh2nac gains Note 5aii 168 1.280
---5.--

95409 178572

Prepaid expenses
and

sundry assets Note 48582 35837

Net smelter
royalty Note 1006 1006

Restricted cash Note 908 108

Property plant
and

equipment Note 343363 205329

Mineral
exploration projects Note 90008

579276

129743

550595

Note 10

Note 11

Note 14

22892

5366

15641

510

75967 44409

Notes
payable Note 10 141766 126784

Future income taxes Note 12 12558 11821

Asset retirement
obligations Note 11 19462 12331

Deferred
compensation liability

Note 14 3816 8616

Other liabilities 497 738

Total liabilities 254066 204699

Note 13a

Note 13c

369747

13054

42762

00S

Commitments Notes 58919
325210 345896

Subsequent events Note 20

579276 550595

On behalf of the Board

Gary German Director

Daniel Titcomb Director

The
acwnipanying natn are an

inte8ral pan af these cansalidatedfinancial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Expressed in thousands of U.S dollars except per

share amounts

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31 December 31

2010 2009 2008

Gold sales 170788 140734 93657

Production costs 119124 74287 53610
Stock-based compensation Notes 13c14 482 600 24
Depletion and amortization 38762 23264 12669
Gross profit 12420 42583 27354

Operating expenses

Exploration 3553 3079 3536

Stock-based compensation Notes 13c14 2053 10644 1238

Administration 20600 16411 12571

Management fees Note 16a 1131 1604 854

Amortization 560 452 264

Accretion
expense Note 11 1697 786 490

Other 5051 2440 379

Total operating expenses 30539 35416 19332

Income loss before the
following 18119 7167 8022

Loss on forward derivatives Note 5ai 686 318

Loss gain on forward foreign exchange derivatives Note 5aii 1391 2642 2623

Foreign exchange gain 1697 17307 2477
Interest

expense Note 10 16638 28847 11584

Interest income 3870 4203 3850
Gain on disposition of

property
Notes 9al0b 6794 2043 452

Write down on SabarÆ
property Note 313 3522

Other
non-operathig expenses

145

Total other
expenses 3885 6319 7746

Income loss before income taxes 22004 848 276

Income taxes Note 12

Current income taxes 1616 4979 6172

Future income taxes recovered 172 3861 1640
Totalincometaxes 1788 8840 4532

Net loss and comprehensive loss for the year 23792 7992 4256

Basic and diluted net loss
per

share Note 15

Weighted average
number of common shares

outstanding Note 15

The
accompanying notes are an

integral pan of
these consolidated financial statements

$0.28

84152914

$0.10 $0.07

76410916 62908676
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Expressed in thousands of U.S dollars

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31 December 31

2010 2009 2008

Cash provided by used in

Operating activities

Net loss and comprehensive loss for the
year 23792 7992 4256

Items not involving cash

Unrealized foreign exchange gain 151 3227 3471
Stock-based compensation 1571 7962 1262

Non-cash interest expense 8098 15320 1982

Accretion of interest revenue 188
Accretion expense 1697 786 490

Future income taxes recovered 172 3861 1640

Depletion and amortization 39322 23716 12933

Write down on SabarÆproperty Note 313 3522

Amortization of net smelter royalty 219

Unrealized loss gain on foreign exchange contracts 1111 3701 4102

Gain on disposition of property 4625
Reclamation expenditure 1662 328

Change in non-cash operating working capital

Inventory 8064 11106 4361

Prepaid expenses and sundry assets 12.607 13.612 14200

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 4960 9707 423

Income taxes payable 1036 7015 5107

Deferred rnmnensatinn liabilities S4A\

19631 31923 1410

Financing activities

Issuance of common shares special

warants and warrants net 2895 114294 105803

Shares purchased for cancellation 6381
Settlement of forward derivatives 14500

Decrease increase in restricted cash 800 2998

Repayment of debt 4158 84614 18654

Increase in debt 31099 118204 3848

Other long term liabilities 463

29499

738

151620 70112

Investing activities

Mineral exploration projects 29275 25200 37087
Purchase of

property plant and
equipment 102089 60300 52210

Proceeds from disposition of
property 1250

130114 85500 89297

Effect of foreign exchange on non-U.S dollar

cash and cash equivalents 1049 2653 4556
Increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 82033 100696 25151
Cash and cash equivalents beginninìg of year

Cashandcasheguivalentsendofyear

121256

39223

20560 45711

121256 20560

Supplemental cash flow information

The accompanying notes are an
integral pan of these consoliclatedfinancial statements

Note 17
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Expressed in thousands of U.S dollars

Common Shares Warrants
Stock Contributed

Deficit Total

Options Surplus

Balance December 31 2007

Public offering Note 13aii

Shares acquired under

normal course issuer

bid and cancelled Nate Haiii

Exercise of compensation

warrants

Options granted Note 13c

Stock based
compensation

Exercise of stock
options

Note 13c

Vested options expired

upon termination Note 13c

Unvested options expired

upon termination Note 13c

Net loss

7805658 1921855734400 141316

8250000 103891

647300 2481

144081

501100

144081 245

998 144081 245

130000

6996451343

916

1020

1153 60413 101519

103891

3900 621

753

916

323

41
4256 4.256

10000 14 14

165000 41

Balance December 31 2008 63982281 245067 7061013 19059 1167 68569 196724

Balance December 31 2008 63982281 245067 7061013 19059 1167 68569 196724

Acquisition
of

Gurupi Property Note 9d 3377354 42454 42454

Public offering Note 13ai 13915000 63238 63238

Exercise of stock options Note 13c 2440013 14908 2440013 4714 10194

Unvested options expired

upon termination Note 13c 24500 47 47
Stock based compensation 464 464

Equity component of

convertible Note 10d 40861 40861

Net loss 7992 7992
Balance December 31 2009 83714648 365667 4596500 14.762 42028 76561 345896

Balance December 31 2009 83714648 365667 4596500 14762 42028 76561 345896

Exercise of stock options Note 13c 659000 4080 659000 1185 2895

Vested options expired

upon termination Note 13c 160000 734 734

Stockbased compensation 211 211

Net loss 23792 23792

BalanceDecember3l2010 84373648 369747 3777500 13054 42762 100353 325210

The
accompanj4ng

notes are an integral pan of these consolidatedfinancial statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tabular dollar amounts in thousands of U.S dollars except per

share amounts

Years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

NATURE OF BUSINESS

The activities ofJaguar Mining Inc the Company are directed towards developing and operating mineral projects in Brazil

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted

principles CDN GAAP using the following significant accounting policies and are expressed in United States dollars

Existing Accounting Policies

Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries

Mineraçªo Serras do Oeste Ltda MSOL Mineraçao Turmalina Ltda MTL and Mineraçªo Chega Tudo Ltda

MCT All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated on consolidation

ii Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers deposits in banks certificates of deposit and short-term investments with maturities of three

months or less at the time of acquisition to be cash and cash equivalents Cash held on deposit as security is classified

as restricted cash Note

iii Short-term Investments

Shortterm investments include short-term money market instruments with terms to maturity at the date of the ac

quisition of between three and twelve months Short-term investments are classified as held-for-trading and recorded

at fair value

iv Inventory

Gold in
process

and ore in stockpiles are stated at the lower of the
average

total production cost or net realizable value

Production costs include direct labour benefits direct material and other direct product costs including depletion and

amortization Net realizable value
represents

estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
any

fUrther

costs expected to be incurred to completion

Raw materials and mine operating supplies are stated at the lower of cost on first-in first-out basis or net realizable

value

The nature of the leaching process inherently limits the ability to precisely monitor inventory levels As result the

metallurgical balancing process
is monitored and the engineering estimates are refined based on actual results over

time The ultimate
recovery

of gold from leach pad will not be known until the leaching process
is concluded

Net smelter royalty

The Company records its net smelter royalty at cost Amortization of the net smelter royalty is calculated on unit of

production basis Royalty revenue is recognized when the Company has reasonable assurance with respect to measure

ment and collectability
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tabular dollar amounts in thousands of U.S dollars except per

share amounts

Years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

vi Property plant and equipment

The Companys property plant and equipment are recorded at cost and are amortized over the useful life

of the asset as follows

Processing plants over the life of the plant straight line

Vehicles
years straight line

Equipment -10
years straight line

Leasehold improvements over term of lease straight line

Mining properties unit of production method1

Depletion of mining properties and amortization of preproduction and development costs are calculated and recorded on the unit-o f-production

basis over the mines estimated and economically proven and probable reserves of the mine and the portion of mineralization expected to be

classified as reserves

vii Impairment

The carrying value of all
categories

of
property plant and equipment and net smelter royalty are reviewed for impair

ment whenever events or circumstances indicate the recoverable value may be less than the carrying amount The net

recoverable amount is based on estimates of undiscounted future net cash flows expected to be recovered from specific

assets or
groups

of assets through their use or future disposition Estimated future net cash flows are calculated using

estimates of future recoverable reserves and resources future commodity prices and expected future operating
and

capital costs An impairment loss is recognized when the
carrying

value of an asset held for use exceeds the sum of the

estimated undiscounted future net cash flows from its use An impairment loss is measured as the amount by
which the

assets carrying amount exceeds its fair value Assumptions such as gold price discount rate and expenditures
under

lying the fair value estimates are subject to risks and uncertainties Impairment charges are recorded in the reporting

period in which determination of impairment is made by management

viii Mineral exploration projects

The Company classifies exploration costs as green
field or brown field according to the expected recoverability

of the

projects Green field costs are exploration costs from the first evaluation of the
target

area through to the completion

of scoping study All costs related to
green

field are expensed and included in exploration costs in the Consolidated

Statements of Operations

Exploration costs subsequent to confirmation of an areas potential are classified as brown field The Company consid

ers its brown field exploration costs to have the characteristics of
property plant and equipment As such the Company

defers all brown field exploration costs including acquisition costs field exploration and field supervisory costs relating

to specific properties until those properties are brought into production at which time they will be amortized on unit

of production basis based on their estimated economic life or until the properties are abandoned sold or considered to

be impaired in value at which time an appropriate charge will be made After mine
property

has been brought into

commercial production the related costs will be transferred to
property plant and equipment

The recoverability of the amounts shown for
mining

interests is dependent on the existence of economically
recoverable

reserves the ability to obtain financing to complete the development of such reserves and meet obligations
under vari

ous
agreements

and the success of future
operations or dispositions
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tabular dollar amounts in thousands of U.S dollars except per

share amounts

Years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

ix Income taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes imder the asset and
liability

method Under this method of tax allocation

future income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between the financial statement
carry-

ing values and their
respective

income tax bases temporary differences Future income tax assets and liabilities are

measured
using

the rates expected to be in effect when the
temporary

differences are likely to reverse The effect on

future income tax assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is included in income in the period in which the change

is substantively enacted The amount of future income tax assets recognized is limited to the amount that is more likely

than not to be realized

Reclamation costs

The Company recognizes
the

liability arising
from legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets

that result from the
acquisition construction development and/or normal

operation
of long-lived asset The fair value

of
liability

for an asset retirement obligation is recorded in the period in which it is incurred When the
liability

is

initially recorded the cost is capitalized by increasing
the

carrying amount of the related long-lived asset The Company

amortizes the amount added to the asset using
the depreciation method established for the related asset The amortiza

tion
expense

is included in the statement of
operations

and accounted for in accumulated amortization An accretion

expense
in relation with the discounted

liability over the
remaining

life of the
mining properties

is accounted for in the

statement of operations and added to the asset retirement obligation The
liability

is adjusted at the end of each period

to reflect the
passage

of time and changes in the estimated future cash flows underlying the obligation Upon settlement

of the liability gain or loss is recorded

xi Foreign currency
translation

The U.S dollar is considered to be the functional
currency

of the Company and of its subsidiaries Monetary assets and

liabilities of the Companys Brazilian
operations are translated into U.S dollars at the rate of exchange in effect at the

balance sheet date and
non-monetary

assets and liabilities are translated at the historical rate of exchange Transactions

in foreign currencies are translated at the actual rates of exchange Foreign currency gains
and losses are recognized

in income

xii Revenue recognition

The Company produces gold dorØ which is further refined by third
party

and sold to international banks and other

financial institutions Revenue is recognized when title is transferred delivery is completed and when the Company

has reasonable assurance with
respect

to measurement and collectability

xiii Stock-based compensation

The Company has stock-based compensation plans which are described in Notes 13c and 14 The Company accounts

for all equity-settled stock-based
payments using

fair value based method
incorporating

the Black-Scholes model

Under the fair value based method compensation cost attributable to options granted is measured at fair value at the

grant date and amortized on straight line basis over the
vesting period No

compensation
cost is recognized for options

that employees forfeit if they fail to satisfr the service
requirement

for
vesting

The Company treats awards that call for settlement in cash including share
appreciation rights and performance

awards as liabilities The value of these liabilities is re-measured at each
reporting period based on the changes in the

intrinsic values of the awards Any gains or losses on re-measurement are recorded in the statement of operations For

any
forfeiture of the awards the accrued

compensation cost will be adjusted by decreasing compensation
cost in the

period of the forfeiture
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tabular dollar amounts in thousands of U.S dollars except per

share amounts

Years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

xiv Net loss
per

share

Basic net loss
per

share is computed by dividing the loss available to common shareholders by the
weighted average

number of common shares outstanding during the period The dilutive effect of outstanding options
and warrants and

their equivalents are reflected in diluted net loss
per

share by the application of the
treasury

method The computation

of diluted net loss
per

share assumes conversion exercise or contingent
issuance of securities only when such conver

sion exercise or issuance would have dilutive effect on net loss
per

share

xv Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions

that affect the re

ported amounts of assets and liabilities particularly valuation of mineral properties recoverable taxes future tax assets

and liabilities asset retirement obligations and measurement of inventories and disclosure of
contingent

assets and li

abilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the periods

Actual results could differ from those estimates

xvi Stripping costs

Costs associated with the removal of overburden and other mine waste materials that are incurred in the production

phase of mining operations are included in the cost of the
inventory produced in the period in which they are incurred

except when the charges represent
betterment to the mineral

property Charges represent
betterment to the min

eral property when the stripping activity provides access to reserves that will be produced in fliture periods that would

not have been accessible without the
stripping activity The Company capitalizes costs related to betterment of the

mineral
property

The charges are amortized over the reserve accessed by the
stripping activity using

the unit of pro
duction method

xvii Financial instruments
recognition

and measurement

The Company classifies all financial instruments as either held to maturity held-for-trading loans and receivables avail

able for sale or other financial liabilities

Held-to-maturity financial assets are
initially recognized at their fair values and subsequently measured at amortized

cost using the effective interest method Impairment losses are charged to net earnings in the period in which they

arise

Held-for-trading financial instruments are carried at fair value with changes in fair value charged or credited to net

earnings in the period in which they arise

Loans and receivables are initially recognized at their fair values with
any resulting premium or discount from the

face value being amortized to income or expense using
the effective interest method Impairment losses are charged

to net earnings in the period in which they arise

Available-for-sale financial instruments are carried at fair value with changes in the fair value charged or credited to

other comprehensive income Impairment losses relating to an other than
temporary impairment are charged to

net earnings in the period in which they arise

Other financial liabilities are initially
measured at cost net of transaction costs or at amortized cost depending upon

the nature of the instrument with
any resulting premium or discount from the face value being amortized to income

or
expense using the effective interest method
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The
following is summary of the financial instruments outstanding and classifications as at December 31 2010

Cash and cash equivalents Held-for-trading

Restricted cash Held-for-trading

Accounts receivable Loans and receivables

Forward
foreign exchange derivative contracts Held-for-trading

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Other liabilities

Notes payable Other liabilities

Deferred
compensation liabilities Other liabilities

The Company has used certain derivative financial instruments principally forward sales contracts to manage

modity price exposure
on gold sales and forward foreign exchange contracts to manage the Companys exposure to

changes in foreign exchange rates Derivative financial instruments are used for risk management purposes
and not

for
generating trading profits Derivative financial instruments are not accounted for as hedges Unrealized

gains
and

losses on the derivative financial instruments are recognized in the statement of operations Unrealized
gains

and losses

on forward sales contracts are result of the difference between the forward
spot price of the gold and the forward sales

contract price Unrealized gains and losses on forward foreign exchange contracts are result of the difference between

the forward
currency

contract price and the
spot price of the Brazilian reais R$

Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Implemented

Business combinations

In January 2009 the CICA issued Section 1582 Business Combinations effective for fiscal
years beginning on or after

January 2011 Earlier adoption of Section 1582 is permitted This pronouncement ftirther aligns Canadian GAAP

with US GAAP and IFRS and changes the accounting for business combinations in number of areas It establishes

principles and requirements governing how an acquiring company recognizes and measures in its financial statements

identifiable assets acquired liabilities assumed any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and goodwill acquired

The section also establishes disclosure requirements that will enable users of the acquiring companys financial state

ments to evaluate the nature and financial effects of its business combinations

ii Consolidated financial statements and non-controlling interests

In January 2009 the CICA issued Section 1601 Consolidated Financial Statements and Section 1602 Non-Con

trolling Interests effective for fiscal
years beginning on or after January 2011 Earlier adoption of these recommen

dations is permitted These pronouncements fUrther align Canadian GAAP with US GAAP and IFRS Sections 1601

and 1602 change the accounting and reporting for ownership interests in subsidiaries held by parties other than the

parent Non-controlling interests are to be presented in the consolidated statement of financial position within equity

but
separate from the parents equity The amount of consolidated net income attributable to the

parent
and to the

non-controlling interest is to be clearly identified and presented on the face of the consolidated statement of income

In addition these pronouncements establish standards for change in parents ownership interest in subsidiary and

the valuation of retained non-controlling equity investments when subsidiary is deconsolidated They also establish

reporting requirements for providing sufficient disclosures that clearly identify and distingnish between the interests of

the
parent and the interests of the non-controlling owners
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iii
Financial instruments

recngnitinn
and measurement

On July 2009 the CICA amended Section 3855 with
regard to determining when

prepayment option
in host debt

instrument is closely related to the host instrument and the amendment is effective for fiscal
years beginning on or after

January 2011 The amendment states that if the exercise
price

of
prepayment option compensates

the lender for an

amount equivalent to the
present

value of the lost interest for the
remaining

term of the host instrument the feature is

considered closely related to the host contract in which it is embedded

iv International Financial
Reporting

Standards IFRS

In January 2006 the CICAs
Accounting

Standards Board AcSB formally adopted the
strategy

of replacing Canadian

GAAP with IFRS for Canadian enterprises with public accountability
On February 13 2008 the AcSB confirmed that

the use of IFRS will be required in 2011 for publicly accountable
profit

oriented
enterprises Commencing with the

interim period ended March 31 2011 the Company will
present

restated
comparative

fiscal 2010 financial statements

for annual and interim periods to be prepared in accordance with IFRS including the restatement of the opening bal

ance sheet as at
January

2010

INVENTORY

Inventory is comprised of the
following

Raw materials

Mine
operating supplies

Ore stockpiles

Gold in
process

Depletion and amortization costs included in inventory

Ore stockpiles

Gold in
process

Stock based compensation costs included in
inventory

Ore stockpiles

Gold in
process

The 2009 inventory is net of write down of
inventory to net realizable value in the amount of $696000 which is included in the

write down on the Sahara
property Note 8b

2010 2009

3267

8565

1653

18.010

2341

7718

8514

18.413

31495 36986

443

4726

2512

4303

5169 6815

54

108

227

55 335
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PREPAID EXPENSES AND SUNDRY ASSETS

2010 2009

Advances to suppliers 1098 591

Recoverable taxes 65583 51171

Sundry receivables from related parties 352 418

Otherc 6072 2707

73105 54887

48344

227

11

35401

217

219

48582 35837

24523 19050

The Company is required to
pay

certain taxes in Brazil based on consumption These taxes are recoverable from the

Brazilian tax authorities through various methods At December 31 2010 total recoverable taxes denominated in Bra

zilian reais R$ amounted to R$109.3 million $65.6 million December 31 2009 R$89.1 million $51.2 million

Sundry receivables are due from PrometÆlica Centro Oeste Mineraçao Ltda PCO and Brazilian Resources Inc

BZI related parties Note 16c BZI is founding shareholder of the Company and PCO is controlled by IMS

Empreendimentos Ltda IMS founding shareholder of the Company

CVRD acquired iron mineral rights from the Company valued at $5 million during 2009 As of December 31 2010

current prepaid expenses
and sundry assets includes $3.6 million receivable from Vale December 31 2009 $nil

Note 10b

During July 2010 the Company entered into limited gold collar program which is financial contract to mitigate

gold price risk The Company purchased gold puts
for 59600 ounces with strike price range

of $1OSO to $1117 per

ounce and sold gold calls for 60000 ounces with strike
price range

of $1300 to $1475 per ounce The
put contracts

expired out of the money with no resulting gain or loss to the Company During the twelve months ended December

31 2010 37500 ounces of the gold call contracts with strike
price

of $1300 were settled with the combined delivery

of the Companys inventory and the purchase of 6129 ounces of gold at net cost to the Company of $686000 The

remaining gold call contracts expired out of the money with no resulting gain or loss to the Company At December

31 2010 no put
and call gold option contracts were outstanding

During 2008 the Company paid RMB International Dublin Limited RMB $22.1 million to close the then out

standing forward sales contracts During 2008 the Company closed outstanding forward purchase contracts realizing

gain of $7.4 million effectively reducing the net loss on the forward contracts to $14.7 million of which $14.5 million

was recorded as of December 31 2007

Included in the statement of
operations

for the twelve months ended December 31 2010 is loss on forward sales de

rivative contracts of $686000 2009 $nil 2008 $318000

Less

Long term recoverable taxes

Sundry receivables from related parties

Other

Current portion of prepaid expenses

and sundry assets

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

Derivative Financial Instruments

Forward sales and derivative contracts
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As at December 31 2010 the Company has forward foreign exchange contracts to purchase Brazilian reals as follows

Amount in Settlement amount in

_________________ thousands of US$ thousands of R$

1000 R$ 1746

1000 1735

1000 1769

1000 1745

1000 178u

5000 R$ 8775

As at December 31 2010 $800000 of cash was held on deposit as collateral for
facility

for forward foreign exchange

transactions Note

At December 31 2010 current assets include $168000 of unrealized foreign exchange gains relating to the forward

foreign exchange contracts December 31 2009 $1.3 million Included in the statement of operations are the follow

ing amounts of unrealized and realized gains or losses on foreign exchange derivatives

2010 2009 2008

$1111 $3701 $4099

2502 1059 1.476

$1391 $2642 $2623

Credit risk is the risk that third
party might fail to discharge

its
obligations

under the terms of financial instrument

which comprise of cash held with banks derivative financial instruments
foreign exchange forward contracts with

positive fair values and credit
exposure to customers The credit risk is limited to the

carrying amount on the balance

sheet The Companys cash and cash equivalents are held
through large

financial institutions in Brazil Canada and the

US The Company manages
its credit risk by entering

into transactions with high credit quality counterparties limiting

the amount of
exposure

to each
counterparty

where possible and
monitoring

the financial condition of the
counterpar

The Company is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of non-performance by counterparties to derivative finan

cial instruments but does not
expect any counterparties to fail to meet their

obligations
The Company deals with only

highly rated counterparties normally major financial institutions The Company is exposed to credit risk when there

is positive fair value of derivative financial instruments at reporting
date

The Companys exposure
for the sale of gold is limited because sales

receipt
from financial institution must be re

ceived prior to shipment of the gold

ii Forward foreign exchange contracts

Settlement

Date

28-Jan-li

25-Feb-li

25-Feb-li

30-Mar-li

30-Mar-li

Unrealized loss gain

Realized loss gain

Financial Instruments

Credit risk

ties
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ii Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk the Company will not be able to meet the obligations associated with its financial liabilities The

Company manages liquidity risk through the management of its capital structure as outlined in Note 18 The Company

has $19.4 million of
working capital at December 31 2010 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities current portion

of notes payable current taxes payable and the current portions of deferred compensation and other liabilities are due

within the current operating period The Companys financial liabilities and other commitments are listed in Note 19

Subsequent to December 31 2010 the Company completed the issuance of $103.5 million net proceeds of $99.3 mil

lion of 5.5% senior unsecured convertible notes Note 20

iii Currency
risk

The Company is exposed to the financial risk related to the fluctuation of foreign exchange rates The Company oper

ates in Brazil Canada and the United States Financial instruments that impact the Companys net earnings due to

currency
fluctuations include Brazilian reais and Canadian dollar denominated cash and cash equivalents accounts

receivable recoverable taxes accounts payable and accrued liabilities notes payable and taxes payable

The table below summarizes sensitivity analysis for significant unsettled
currency

risk exposure with respect to the

Companys financial instruments as at December 31 2010 with all other variables held constant It shows how net in

come would have been affected by changes in the relevant risk variable that were reasonably possible at that date

Exchange Rates
Change for Sensitivity

Analysis

Impact of Change to 2010

Foreign Exchange Gain or

Loss

U.S dollar
per

Brazilian reais 10% change in Brazilian reais 5420

U.S dollar
per

Canadian

dollar

10% change in Canadian

dollar

208

iv Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on its outstanding
variable rate borrowings

Interest on the Companys

short-term and long-term debt is based on both fixed and variable interest rates The Company managed its risk by

entering
into long-term agreements

with fixed interest rates on 99% of its debt with interest rates ranging
from 0% to

6.35%
per annum

Commodity price
risk

The Company is exposed to price
risk with

respect to gold prices
that are affected

by various forces
including global

supply and demand interest rates exchange rates inflation or deflation and the
political

and economic conditions of oil

and major gold-producing
countries The Company has no forward gold production hedged

There is no price
risk

relating to gold prices at December 31 2010 as there was no dore in
inventory on that date

Note
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vi Stock based
compensation

risk

The Company is exposed to the risk of increased compensation expense
due to the increase in the Companys share

price

The Companys compensation expense
is subject to volatility due to the movement of share price and its impact on

the value of certain stock-based
compensation programs These programs as described in Note 14 include Deferred

Stock Units DSUs Restricted Stock Units RSUs and Share Appreciation Rights SARs Under the program
the DSUs and RSUs represent rights to receive cash settlement from the Company equivalent to the market price of

the common shares on the date of exercise The SARs
represent rights to receive cash settlement from the Company

equivalent to the amount by
which the market price of the Companys common shares at the time of exercise exceeds

the market
price

of such shares at the time of grant For the
year

ended December 31 2010 strengthening or weak

ening
of $1.00 in the

price
of the Companys common shares would have had an unfavourable or favourable impact of

approximately $1.6 million in income before income taxes respectively

vii Fair value estimation

CICA Handbook Section 3862 Financial Instruments Disclosures prescribes the following three-level fair value hier

archy
for disclosure

purposes
based on the transparency of the inputs used to measure the fair values of the assets and

liabilities

Level
quoted prices unadjusted of identical instruments in active markets that the reporting entity has the

ability to access at the measurement date

Level
inputs are quoted prices of similar instruments in active markets quoted prices for identical or similar

instruments in markets that are not active inputs other than quoted prices used in valuation model that are

observable for that instrument and inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market

data
by

correlation or other means

Level one or more significant inputs used in valuation technique are unobservable for the instruments

Determination of fair value and the
resulting hierarchy requires the use of observable market data whenever available

The classification of financial instrument in the hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to

the measurement of fair value

The fair values of the Companys financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on recurring

basis as at December 31 2010 are as follows

Financial Assets Quoted Prices in Significant Significant

Active Market Observable Unobservable

Market Identical Inputs Inputs

Asset Level Level Level
Cash and cash

equivalents

Cash 26961

Cash
equivalents 12262

39223

Restricted Cash 908

Forward contracts 168

__________________________-
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The
carrying

value and fair value of the Companys financial assets and liabilities are as fnllnws

2010 2009

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Value Value Value Value

Cash and cash equivalents 39223 39223 121256 121256

Restricted cash 908 908 108 108

Forward contracts assets2 168 168 1280 1280

Notes payable3 167896 151430 132150 147734
Accounts payable and

accrued liabilities 27853 27853 22892 22892
Deferred

compensation

liabilities4 6252 7271 8616 9936

Other liabilities 1201 1201 738 738

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are recorded at their tair values Accounts payable and accrued liabilities and other

liabilities approximate their fair values due to their immediate orshort terms ot maturity

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is based on their listed market price it available If ilsted market price is not available

then fair value is esilmated by discounting the difference between the contractual forward price and the current forward price for the resid

ual maturity of the contract using risk-free interest rate based on govemment bonds

The fair value of the notes payable was based on their market price if available If market price is not available then the fafr value is

deteirnined by discounting the future cash flows at the current market rate of interest available to the Company

The fair value of stock appreciation rights SAR ilabilities is measured using the Black-Scholes model and is recognized over the

service or vesting period The carrying value measured using intrinsic value of the Deferred Stock Unil DSU and Restricted Stock

Unit RSU liabilities approximates thefr fair values

NET SMELTER ROYALTh

2010 2009

1225 1225PrometÆlica Mineraçªo Ltda PML
Less Accumulated amortization

Net

219 219

1006 1006

On March 20 2006 the Company entered into an agreement
with PrometÆlica Mineraçªo Ltda PML whereby it ex

changed loan receivable from PML for 1.5% Net Smelter Royalty NSR on its Monte Cristo project for term of 4.5

years
which is the expected life of the project The NSR was recorded at the carrying amount of the receivable from PML

plus accrued interest through March 20 2006

During 2010 and 2009 the Company received royalty income of $nil 2008 $30000 Note 16c The royalty income and

the related amortization are netted in other operating expenses
in the statement of operations PMLs controlling shareholders

are BZI and IMS the founding shareholders of the Company

On August 11 2008 PML filed judicial restructuring in Belo Horizonte state of Minas Gerais Brazil Prior to the filing
the

primary shareholders of PML BZI and IMS provided unsecured
guarantees

of PMLs obligation to MineraçSo Serras do Oeste

Ltda MSOL 100% owned subsidiary of the Company These
guarantees

will ensure the
recovery

of the Net Smelter

Royalty
due from PML if PML is unable to

pay
the Company
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At December 31 2010 $108000 was held in Certificate of
Deposit as security for

corporate
credit cards December 31

2009 $108000 In addition at December 31 2010 $800000 was restricted as collateral for the foreign exchange contracts

December 31 2009 $nil Note 5aii

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2010

Upon commencement of commercial production mineral exploration projects are classified as Property
Plant and Equipment

PPE During the third
quarter of 2010 the CaetØ Expansion Project commenced commercial

production
and the costs related

to the Pilar and Roça Grande mines were transferred to PPE During 2009 the
following properties were reclassified to PPE

Satinoco Turmalina Project Palmital PaciŒncia Project and Marzagªo PaciŒncia Project See Note for summary of costs

reclassified

Mining properties

As at December 31 2010 mining properties include the following properties
which are in production

Turmalina
Project Turmalina and Satinoco mines

The terms of the acquisition of MTL include royalty payable by the Company to an unrelated third
party

The
royalty

is net revenue interest of 5% of annual net revenue up to $10 million and 3% thereafter

Cost Accumulated Net

Processing plants

Vehicles

Equipment

Leasehold improvements

Assets under construction

13733

12683

188967

2208

8390

6786
4792

36782

378

6947

7891

152185

1830

8390

Mining properties 224394 58274 166120

450.375 107012 343.363

Cost

2009

Accumulated

Amortization

Net

Processing plants

Vehicles

Equipment

13500

6225

120756

Leasehold improvements

Assets under construction

Mining properties

5866

3056

22025

203426

17055

109.922

7634

3169

98731

223

1.405

267.884 62.555 205329

17055

78.5 17
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ii PaciŒncia
Project

Santa Isabel Palmital and
Marzagan mines

The Company has an
agreement

with AngloGold to
pay sliding scale NSR from 1.5% to 4.5% of

gross revenue on

gold
and other precious metals produced from the Santa Isabel

property
based on precious metal

prices
at the time of

production Note 9a

iii Caetd Project Roça Grande and Pilar mines

The Company is required to
pay royalties of 0.5% of revenue to the land owners of the Pilar mine site

SabarÆ write down

During December 2009 the Company decided to terminate production at the SabarÆ plant which had been idle since

August 2009 The assets related to the SabarÆ
property were evaluated for recoverability based on salvage value and

PPE write down of $2.8 million was recorded 2008 $nil write down of inventory of $696000 related to the SabarÆ

property was also recorded in 2009 Note During 2010 an additional write down of $313000 was recorded relating

to additional asset retirement obligations

The Sahara
property is subject to 1% Net Smelter Royalty NSR

MINERAL EXPLORATION PROJECTS

Mineral Exploration 2008 Additions
Reclassil5r 2009 Additions Reclassify 2010

Project to PPE to PPE
PaciŒncia 11457 8160 15912 3705 6329 10034

Turmalina 7617 2968 7730 2855 4519 7374

CaetØ Expansion

Project 60205 12162 72367 14046 69058 17355

Gurupid 50.816 50.816 4.429 55.245

79279 74106 23642 129743 29323 $69058 90008

PaciŒncia
Project

The PaciŒncia Project includes the
following properties Santa Isabel Morro do Adao Rio de Peixe Palmital Ouro Fino

Marzagªo Bahu Monges and Ajuda

In 2009 the
Marzagao

and Palmital
properties

commenced commercial
production

and were reclassified to PPE

In November 2003 the Company closed on property acquisition agreement
dated

April 17 2003 whereby
the Com

pany acquired certain mineral
rights

from
AngloGold

for $818000 The mineral
rights acquired relate to the

following

properties in the PaciŒncia project Santa Isabel Morro do Adao Bahu and
MarLagao

and the following properties
in

the CaetØ
Expansion Project Catita and CamarÆ The Company will also

pay sliding
scale NSR from 1.5% to 4.5% of

gross revenue on gold
and other

precious
metals

produced from the
properties

based on precious
metal

prices at the

time of production

If the Company discovers on concession basis in excess of 750000 ounces of
gold over the measured and indicated

resources used in the
agreement AngloGold

has the
right to buy-in up to 70% of that concession for predetermined

price If this were to occur the Company would retain 30% interest and would receive the same sliding
scale NSR

payment from
AngloGold as the one mentioned above
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On November 21 2007 the Company reached an agreement
with

AngloGold whereby it transferred Zone to Anglo-

Gold for an agreed upon value of $8.1 million Part of the purchase price was satisfied by the settlement of $350000

in
existing

liabilities payable by MSOL to AngloGold The remaining balance will be paid through
reduction of future

royalty payments on the
sliding scale NSR for the

properties purchased from AngloGold in 2003 MSOL will not be

required to make royalty payments on the equivalent of approximately 280000 ounces of
gold As at December 31

2007 the Company recorded
gain of $381000 based on the difference between the carrying

value of Zone and the

amount of the liabilities settled in the transaction Since the future royalty payments are contingent on the production

and sale of gold at the related
properties

the Company is recognizing additional gains over the life of the mine as roy

alty obligation is reduced During 2010 additional
gains of $1.8 million 2009 $2.0 million 2008 $452000 were

recognized relating to this
property Notes 8aii 17

Turmalina

The costs relate to the Satinoco property Ore Body adjacent to the Turmalina plant
and mine not currently in com

mercial production Effective
September 30 2009 the Satinoco Ore Body property was reclassified to PPE upon

commercial production The
property is subject to royalty payable to third

party Note ai

CaetØ Expansion Project

The
project

includes the
following properties Pilar-sulphide Catita-sulphide Camara Roça Grande and Serra Paraiso

sulphide Juca Vieira and Trindade Effective
August 2010 the Roça Grande and Pilar mines were reclassified to PPE

upon commercial production

Gurupi Project

On December 2009 the Company completed its acquisition
of MCT from Companhia Nacional de Mineraçäo

CNM subsidiary of Kinross Gold Corporation Kinross Jaguar
has lOO0o equity ownership of MCT which

holds all of the mineral licenses for the Gurupi Project gold project
located in the state of Maranhao Brazil In addi

tion Kinross has granted right
of first refusal to Jaguar on an adjacent exploration property

The Company satisfied

the purchase price for MCT by issuing to CNM 3377354 Jaguar common shares

The transaction was accounted for as an asset purchase for accounting purposes with the final purchase price
allocated

as follows

Purchase Price

3377354 common shares issued 42453

Transaction costs 385

42838

Net Assets acquired

Cash and cash equivalents

Prepaid expenses
and

sundry assets

Mineral exploration projects 50816

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 28
Future income taxes 79fi0

42838
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10 NOTES PAYABLE

Due to Banco Bradesco ai
Due to Banco Bradesco aii
Due to Banco Bradesco aiii

Due to Banco Bradesco aiv
Due to Banco Bradesco av
Due to Banco Bradesco avi
Due to Banco Bradesco avii

Due to CVRD
Due to Banco Safra ci
Due to Banco Safra cii
Convertible notes

Due to Banco Itau ei
Due to Banco Itau eii
Due to Banco Itau eiii

Due to Banco Itau eiv

Less Current portion

151430 132150

Principal repayments over the next years

Total

Less Unamortized discounts

Due to Banco Bradesco

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

26391

11321

2301

165187

188

205388

37492
167.896

Relates to secured credit
facility

of R$167000 $96000 at December 31 2009 The equipment loan bore interest at

TJLP Brazilian government rate plus 1.9%
per annum 7.9% at December 31 2009 and was repayable over 36

months
Security was provided by the equipment purchased

ii Relates to secured credit
facility

of R$273000 $164000 at December 31 2010 R$820000 $471000 December

31 2009 The
equipment loan bears interest at TJLP Brazilian govemment rate plus 3.02% per annum 9.02% at

December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 and is repayable over 36 months Security was provided by
the

equipment purchased

2010 2009

96

164 471

514

657

3000

6000

5000

7968 11125

3211

3000

128555 120458

1498

2379

3000

2.950

167896

26.130

132150

5.366

141766$ 126784

2010

Notes Payable 167896

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Value Value Value Value

2009

147734
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iii Relates to notes payable at 4.5% per annum with
security provided by equipment

and
by personal guarantees by

certain directors of MSOL The notes mature June 2013 and are repayable over 30 months commencing January

2011

iv Relates to note payable at 6.3 5% per annum with
security provided by equipment maturing August 2015 The notes

are payable in seven semi-annual
payments commencing August 2012

Relates to
promissory note at 2.96%

per annum with
security provided by future gold sales payable at the

maturity

date of February 2011

vi Relates to two promissory notes at 3.0%
per annum with

security provided by future
gold sales payable at the

maturity date of
August

2011

vii Relates to two promissory notes at 3.0%
per annum with

security provided by future gold sales payable at the

maturity date of November 2011

Due to CYRD

Relates to purchase of mineral rights for the Roça Grande
property

The Company acquired an option to obtain mineral rights at the Roça Grande gold property
from CVRD under an

agreement dated November 28 2005 for 3.5% of the market value of CVRDs estimated resources plus 2.5% of
any

additional resources determined by Jaguar less
expenses

associated with the transfer During 2007 Jaguar completed

an audit of CVRDs resource estimate and exercised its option to purchase the mineral rights for approximately $7.8

million On April 2008 the Company agreed to pay an additional $5.5 million for total of $13.3 million based

upon additional resources discovered during final review of the estimated mineral resources available The
timing

of

these payments is dependent upon CVRDs
registration

of the mineral rights transfer with the Departamento Nacional

de Producao Mineral DNPM During 2010 the Company paid $3.2 million 2009 $1.1 million relating to these

mineral rights The Company expects to execute the final transfer
agreement

and
pay $2.3 millionof the purchase price

in 2011 and the remaining balance of $6.7 million in 2012

According to CICA Handbook Section 3855 the note payable was recognized at its fair value and the discount is being

amortized using the effective interest method

The contract
grants corresponding rights for CVRD to explore property

owned by the Company for iron and to

acquire iron mineral rights on the
property

CVRD acquired iron mineral rights subject to approval from the DNPM
from the Company valued at $5 million during 2009 DNPM approval was obtained in June 2010 at which time the

sale was recorded In July the Company received $1.25 million and the balance of $3.75 million is due July 2011 The

portion due in one year
has been discounted to reflect the time value of money For the

year
ended December 31 2010

the statement of operations includes gain on disposition of
property

of $4.6 million 2009 $nil relating to the sale

of iron ore rights Note 4c

Due to Banco Safra

Relates to note payable at 6.0%
per annum with

security provided by equipment maturing February 2013

The note is payable over 30 months which commenced October 2010

ii Relates to promissory note at 3.55%
per annum with

security provided by future gold sales payable at the maturity

date of February 2011
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tabular dollar amounts in thousands of U.S dollars except per

share amounts

Years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

Convertible notes

During September 2009 the Company issued $165 million of 4.5% senior unsecured convertible notes

Jaguar received net proceeds of approximately $159.1 million The notes bear interest at rate of 4.5%
per annum

payable semi-annually in arrears on May and November of each
year beginning on May 2010 and mature on

November 2014 The notes have an initial conversion rate of 78.4314 Jaguar common shares per US$1000 principal

amount of notes representing an initial conversion price of approximately US$12.75 per
common share The conver

sion rate is subject to certain anti-dilution adjustments and adjustments in connection with specified corporate events

The notes are convertible at
any

time prior to maturity Upon conversion Jaguar may in lieu of delivering its common

shares elect to pay or deliver as the case may be cash or combination of cash and common shares in respect of the

converted notes Jaguar will be required to make an offer to repurchase the notes for cash upon the occurrence of

certain fundamental changes as defined within the terms of the notes

The Company allocated $118.2 million of the net proceeds to debt based on the fair value of similar debt instruments

without an associated conversion option The remaining portion of the net proceeds of $40.9 millionwas allocated to

the conversion feature and was recorded in contributed surplus

Due to Banco Itau

Relates to two notes payable at 4.5%
per annum with security provided by equipment maturing April 2013

The notes are payable over 30 months which commenced December 2010

ii Relates to two notes payable at 5.0%
per annum with security provided by equipment $1.7 million is repayable over

31 months commencing in March 2011 maturing July 2013 $649000 is payable over 31 months commencing

March 2011 maturing August 2013

iii Relates to two promissory notes at 3.0%
per annum with security provided by future gold sales payable at the

maturity date of December 2011

iv Relates to note payable at 5.0%
per annum with security provided by equipment maturing October 2013 The note

is payable over 30 months commencing May 2011

The total interest expense related to indebtednesses
initially

incurred for term of more than one year for the
year

ended

December 31 2010 is $16.0 million 2009 $28.8 million 2008 $11.0 million
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tabular dollar amounts in thousands of U.S dollars except per

share amounts

Years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

11 ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

Balance beginning of
year

Increase in reclamation obligations

SabarÆ

Turmalina

PaciŒncia

CaetØ
________ ______ 4218

Reclamation expenditures 328
Accretion

expense

Balance end of
year

Less current portion

The asset retirement obligations relate to the following

SabarÆ

The Company expects
to spend approximately $1.5 million1 between 2011 and 2015 to reclaim land that has been

disturbed as result of mining activity

Turmalina

The Company expects
to spend approximately $11.7 million between 2011 and 2026 to reclaim land that has been

disturbed as result of the mining activity

PaciŒncia

The Cnmpany expects
tn spend approximately $1I.7millinn between 2111 and 2026 to reclaim land that has been

disturbed as result of the mining activity

ii CaetØ

The Company expects
to spend approximately $12.5 million between 2011 and 2025 to reclaim land that has been

disturbed as result of mining activity

The credit adjusted risk free rate at which the estimated fhture cash flows have been discounted is 10% to 12% and the inflation

rate used to determine future expected cost ranges
is 3.7% to 6.2% per annum

These
figures have not been discounted or adjusted for inflation

2010

12841

410

2009

1274

534

6535

8165

8753

1662

3126

1092

1697 786

21629 12841

2167 510

19462 12331
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tabular dollar amounts in thousands of U.S dollars except per

share amounts

Years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

12 INCOME TAXES

The Company is subject to income taxes in both Canada and Brazil

The
recovery

of income taxes varies from the amounts that would be computed by applying
the combined Canadian federal

and provincial statutory
rate of approximately 31.0% 2009 33.0% 2008 33.50% to income loss before income taxes as

follows

2010 2009 2008

Expected income tax
expense recovery

using statutory
income tax rate

Increase decrease in tax
expense resulting from

Foreign exchange

Stock based compensation

Loss on fonvard sales derivatives

Non-deductible interest
expense

Impact of future changes in enacted tax rates

Other non-deductible
expense

Withholding tax on inter-company interest

Valuation allowance

Income tax
expense

355

3274

1253

986

2788
1.788 8.840 4.532

Future Tax Assets

Canada

Non-capital losses

Stock isssuance costs and financing fees

Cumulative eligible capital

Property plant and equipment

Unrealized loss on foreign exchange

Brazil

12193

2665

149

209

2081

9828

4266

141

ill

985

Pre-production costs

Net smelter royalty amortization

Non-capital losses

Impairments

Amounts not deductible until paid

6821 280 93

5342

138

899
65

303

Si

4879

958

3.252

14542
445

2170

77

1397

14897

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of future tax assets and

liabilities as at December 31 are as follows

2010 2009

Valuation allowance

754

6S

18517

1854

5.298

280

64

9401

1410

3.663

43786 30148

24.298 21043

19488 9.105
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tabular dollar amounts in thousands of U.S dollars except per

share amounts

Years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

2010 2009

Future Tax Liabilities

Brazil

Acquisition
of mineral

property

Rio de Peixe 638 611

Gurupi 8362 7971
Unrealized

gain on foreign exchange 12511 7021

Capitalized pre-stripping costs 10470 5243

Engineering costs capitalized 64 80

32046 20926

Netfuturetaxliabilities 12558 11821

Canada

The Company has non-capital losses carried forward of approximately $48.8 million that are available for tax pur

poses
The losses

expire as follows

Year US$

2014 3774

2015 5771

2026 1633

2027 6113

2028 1989

2029 20008

2030 9.485

48.773

The benefit of the Canadian non capital loss
carry

forwards has not been recognized in future tax assets

Brazil

The Company has non-capital loss carry-forwards of approximately R$ 90.7 million $54.5 million which can be

carried forward indefinitely however only 30% of the taxable income in one year can be applied against the loss
carry

forward balance Approximately R$34.3 million $20.6 million of the Brazilian non-capital loss carry-forwards
has

not been recognized in future tax assets
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13 CAPITAL STOCK

Common shares

The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares

On March 2009 the Company completed an equity financing underwritten by syndicate of underwriters and

issued 13915000 common shares at Cdn.$6.20 per
share for

gross proceeds of Cdn.$86.3 million $66.9 million

ii On February 21 2008 the Company completed an equity financing underwritten by syndicate of underwriters and

issued 8250000 common shares at Cdn.$l3.40 per
share for

gross proceeds of Cdn.$1 10.6 million $109.6 million

iii In June 2008 the Company received approval from the TSX for an amendment to the prior normal course issuer

bid to purchase additional shares up to the lesser of 2242924 common shares or the number of common shares

equal to maximum
aggregate purchase price of Cdn.$10.0 million During 2008 the Company purchased

647300 shares at an average price of Cdn.$9.98 per common share

In November 2008 the Company received approval from the TSX for another normal course issuer bid to purchase

up to the lesser of 3119114 common shares being 5% of the issued and outstanding common shares of Jaguar at

that time or the number of common shares equal to maximum
aggregate purchase price of Cdn $7.0 million No

purchases have been made under the third normal course issuer bid The share purchases were recorded as reduc

tion in the common share balance equivalent to the
average cost basis of the shares purchased and an adjustment to

shareholders equity During 2008 common stock was reduced by $2.5 million and the excess paid over the
average

cost basis in the amount of $3.9 million was charged to deficit

The shares acquired in the normal course issuer bids have been cancelled

iv On December 2009 the Company issued 3377354 common shares valued at $42.5 million on the date of

sale as payment for the 100% equity ownership of MCT

Warrants

During 2008 144081 compensation warrants were exercised at Cdn.$S.25
per

share for
gross proceeds of

Cdn.$756000 $752000 As of December 31 2010 and 2009 no warrants were outstanding

Stock options

During 2003 the Company established The Jaguar Stock Option Plan the Plan Under the Plan the Company may

grant options to directors officers employees and consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries The maximum

number of Company shares that have been reserved under this plan is 10500000 Options granted after February 17

2004 do not have
any specific vesting provisions Effective October 22 2004 the Plan was amended to allow cashless

exercise of the options Under this amendment an option holder can elect to have the Company withhold number

of shares of stock issued as payment of the exercise prices based on the price of the shares at the close of trading on

the day preceding the day of exercise of the options with the net shares issued to the optionee in connection with the

exercised options On March 18 2009 the cashless exercise feature was withdrawn No options were exercised using

the cashless method in 2009 During the
year

ended December 31 2008 619500 options were exercised using the

cashless method
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Years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

Common

Share

Option

Balance December 31 2007

Issued during the
year

Options exercised

-exercisable in Cdn

Options expired

Balance December 31 2008

Options exercised

-exercisable in US

-exercisable in Cdn

Options expired

Balance December 31 2009

Options exercised

-exercisable in Cdn

Expired

Balance December 31 2010

699645
175.000

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Price U.S

5.85

6.86

3.83

6.36

No options were granted during 2010 or 2009 During 2008 130000 options were granted to consultant of the Company

which vested upon future performance These
options expired without

vesting
and therefore were not valued or expensed

Number Weighted

Average

Exercise

Price U.S

7805658 1.00

130000

7061013 1.00 6.06

135000

2305013

24500

1.00

4.69

5.47

4S96500 6.76

659000

160000

4.54

9.35

3777500 7.03

Exercise Outstanding Weighted Average Number

Price December 31 2010 Remainincr life in Exercisable

4.41 Cdn 25000 0.50 25000

4.62 Cdn 36000 0.67 36000

5.47 Cdn 550000 0.36 550000

5.94 Cdn 940000 1.22 940000

6.40 Cdn 810000 0.92 810.000

6.48 Cdn 326500 1.69 326500

9.54 Cdn 1.090.000 1.93 1.090.000

3777500 3.777.500
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14 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLANS

On November 2008 the Company established three long-term incentive plans for directors senior officers employees and

consultants of the Company On December 2010 the Company established Cliff Share Appreciation Rights
Plan CSAR

which allows the Company to grant performance awards directors and senior management of the Company

Deferred Share Units

Deferred Share Unit DSU Plan was established which allows the Company to grant its directors
performance

awards DSUs call for eventual settlement in cash based upon the price of the Companys common stock
subsequent

to directors
resignation

from the Companys board of directors

Deferred Stock Units 2010 2009

Units outstanding beginning
of

period 174559 111737

Units granted 46668 62822

Balance
outstanding

end of
period 221227 174559

Liability
included in deferred

compensation liabilities

in the consolidated balance sheets

Expense
recorded in the consolidated statements of

operations
and

comprehensive
loss

Stock-based
compensation expense recovery

Foreign exchange
loss

Restricted Stock Units

1.518 1984

526 1439

60 170

466 1609

Restricted Stock Unit RSU Plan was established which allows the Company to grant performance awards to

senior officers employees and consultants of the Company RSUs call for eventual settlement in cash based upon the

price
of the Companys common stock at future vesting date
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Restricted Stock Units

Units outstanding beginning of period 675900

Units granted 251425

Units vested
upon termination 84700

Units vested
upon time vesting 4200

Units cancelled 34.3001

Balance
outstanding end of period

Liability included in deferred compensation liabilities

in the consolidated balance sheets

Current portion

Long term portion

Expense
recorded in the consolidated statements of

operations
and

comprehensive
loss

Production costs

Stock-based
compensation expense

cash

Stock-based
compensation expense

Foreign exchange loss

Expense
deferred and included in mineral

exploration

projects
in the consolidated balance sheets

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tabular dollar amounts in thousands of U.S dollars except per

share amounts

Years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

2010 2009

313200

395250

6900

25.6501

804125 675900

1348

1567 2305

2915 2305

413

546

344

111

1414

501

1449

100

2050

28 213

Stock Appreciation Rights

Stock
Appreciation Rights Plan SAR was established which allows the Company to grant performance

awards to

senior officers employees or consultants of the Company SARs call for eventual settlement in cash based upon the

increase in
price

of the Companys common stock

On December 2009 the Board amended the SAR plan retroactively to provide
for accelerated vesting such that one

third will vest upon issuance one third will vest one
year

after grant
and one third will vest two

years
after

grant SAR

participants are permitted to select pre-determined price at which the SARs would be
paid at an amount equal to the

difference between the market
price at the date of

grant and the pre-determined price upon
both the

pre-determined

price being
attained and the

vesting
of the SAR If no pre-determined price is selected

by
the

participant or if the pre

determined
price is not attained before the three

year period the payout amount will be the increase in price
of the

Companys common stock from the
grant

date to the
expiry date
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Stock Appreciation Rights 2010 2009

Units
outstanding beginning

of
period 685000

Units
granted 685000

Units exercised 418.3311

Balance
outstanding

end of
period

Liability included in deferred
compensation

liabilities

in the consolidated balance sheets

Current
portion

Long term portion

Expense
recorded in the consolidated statements of

operations
and comprehensive loss

Stock-based
compensation expense

cash

Stock-based
compensation expense recovery

non-cash
______________________________

Cliff Share
Appreciation Rights

Plan CSAR was established to allow the Company to
grant performance awards to

directors and senior management of the Company The
purpose

of the CSAR award is to provide incentive that rewards

achieving production cost targets
and

appreciation to shareholder value
targets by participation in an incentive bonus

pool CSARs call for eventual settlement in cash upon change in control At December 31 2010 there is no
liability

included in deferred
compensation liability

and no expense
recorded in stock based compensation expense

Dollar amounts and share amounts in thousands except per
share amounts

2010 2009 2008

Net loss for the
year

Denominator

Weighted average
number of

common shares
outstanding

Basic and diluted net loss
per

share
___________________________________________________

The determination of the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding for the calculation of diluted net loss

per

share does not include the effect of outstanding warrants options
and convertible notes since they are anti-dilutive

951669

855100

1806769 951669

1088

731 4327

1819 4327

3283

2508 4310

2508 7593

Cliff Share Appreciation Rights

15 BASIC AND DILUTED NET LOSS PER SHARE

Numerator

23792 7992 4256

841S3 76.411 62909

0.28 0.10 0.07
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12941 3774

17128 9603 7.459

The Company incurred fees of $1.1 million for the
year

ended December 31 2010 2009 $1.6 million 2008

$719000 from IMS Engenharia Mineral Ltda IMSE company held by two officers of the Company with which

the Company entered into service agreement with IMSE to render senior management services The fees are included

in management fees in the statement of operations The Company entered into service agreement with IMSE to

render senior management services The agreement will expire on December 31 2011

The Company incurred occupancy fees of $180000 for the year ended December 31 2010 2009 $180000 2008

$180000 to Brazilian Resources Inc BZI corporate shareholder for use of administrative offices As at Decem

ber 31 2010 prepaid expenses and sundry assets includes $70000 from BZI relating to leasehold improvements paid by

the Company December 31 2009 $126000

In September 2010 the Companys offices in Belo Horizonte moved to new location The Company recognized
rental

income of $29000 from BZI for the use of administrative offices for the
year

ended December 31 2010 2009 $nil

200.8 $nil As at December 31 2010 prepaid expenses and sundry assets includes $29000 due from BZI relating to

rental income December 31 2009 $nil

The Company also incurred consulting fees and administrative service charges
of $140000 from BZI for the

year ended

December 31 2010 2009 $603000 2008 $344000 The occupancy costs consulting fees and administrative ser

vice fees are included in the statement of operations As at December 31 2010 accounts payable
and accrued liabilities

includes $nil due to BZI December 31 2009 $58000

The Company recognized
rental income of $nil from PML and $nil from PCO for the

years ended December 31 2010

and December 31 2009 2008 $9000 from PML and $34000 from PCO for
temporarily

idle
equipment

and the

use of administrative offices PCO is controlled by IMS founding shareholder of the Company As at December 31

2010 prepaid expenses and sundry assets includes $nil from PML and $16000 from PCO December 31 2009 $nil

from PML and $15000 from PCO Note 4b During 2010 and 2009 the Company received $nil 2008 $30000
of

royalty income relating to the NSR Note

On August 11 2008 PML filed judicial restructuring in Belo Horizonte state of Minas Gerais Brazil At this time

the financial
impact of this action is indeterminate Prior to the filing the primary shareholders of PML BZI and IMS

provided guarantee of PMLs obligation to Mineraçªo Serras do Oeste Ltda MSOL 100% owned subsidiary of

the Company This
guarantee

will ensure the recovery of the NSR due from PML if PML is unable to pay
the Company

As at December 31 2010 the amount of the obligation is approximately $1.0 million Note

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
tabular dollar amounts in thousands of U.S dollars except per share amounts

Years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

2010 2009 2008

26

4187 5829 7433

Options and warrants and

convertible notes considered

anti-dilutive

Warrants

Options

4.5% Senior convertible notes

Note 10d
Total

16 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
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Years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

The Companys subsidiaries MSOL and MTL were required to
pay an employment claim of former employee who

performed work for MSOL then owned by BZI and other BZI companies BZI has guaranteed the amount owed

to the Company of R$378000 $227000 As at December 31 2010 prepaid expenses
and sundry assets include

$227000 receivable from BW Mineraçªo wholly owned subsidiary of BZI December 31 2009 $217000 Note

The above related
party

transactions are in the normal course of operations and have been measured at the exchange

amount agreed upon between the related parties

17 SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATiON

11450

1201

Cash and cash equivalents include R$18.8 million $11.3 million in bank certificates of deposit 2009 R$100.4 million

$57.6 million and $1.0 million in term deposits 2009 $1.0 million

During 2010 the Company paid $nil in income taxes in Brazil 2009 R$2.8 million $1.2 million and 2008 $nil

18 CAPITAL DISCLOSURES

The Company manages
its capital structure in order to

support
the

acquisition exploration and development of mineral prop

erties and to maximizereturn to stakeholders through flexible capital structure which optimizes the costs of capital and the

debt and equity balance The Company sets the amount of capital in
proportion to risk by managing the capital structure and

making adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets To adjust

or maintain our capital structure the Company may adjust the amount 0f
long term debt enter into new credit facilities or

issue new equity The Companys overall
strategy

remains unchanged from 2009

The capital structure of the Company consists of notes payable Note 10 and all of the
components

of shareholders
equity

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements

2010 2009 2008

Equipment purchased on issuing note

payable Note 10 aiiiiii
Transfer of Zone in return for forgiveness

of royalties payable Note 9a
Mineral rights purchased on issuing note

payable to CVRD Note 11b
Mineral rights purchased on issuing

common stock Notes 13aiv

505

17645 2043

39000

2263

4S2

5494

2010 2009 2008

9312Interst paid

Income taxes paid

9172
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19 COMMITMENTS

In the normal course of business the Company enters into contracts that give rise to commitments for future minimum pay

ments The
following

table summarizes the
remaining contractual maturities of the Companys financial liabilities and other

commitments

Commitments Less than years years More than Total

year years

Current liabilities

Accounts
payable

and

accrued liabilities 27853 27853

Income taxes payable 16677 16677

Other liabilities 704 497 1201

Notes payable

Principal 26391 13622 165375 205388

Interest 9355 15499 7462 32316

Operating
lease

agreements 201 201

Management agreements

Operations 595 595

Suppliers agreements

Mine operations 541 541

Drilling 450 450

Asset retirement obhgations 2335 1506 1649 30970 36460

Total 85102 31124 174486 30970 321682

The term of the management agreement is one year Note 16a

The Company has the
right to cancel the mine operations contract with 10 days to months advance notice The

amount included in the contractual
obligations table represents the amount due within this period

The Company has the
right to cancel the drilling contract with 30 days advance notice The amount included in the

contractual
obligations

table
represents the amount due within 30 days

The asset retirement obligations are not adjusted for inflation and are not discounted

20 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

During February 2011 the Company issued $103.5 million of S.S0o senior unsecured convertible notes The Company received

net proceeds of
approximately $99.3 million The notes bear interest at rate of 5.5%

per annum payable semi-annually in

arrears on March 31 and
September 30 each

year beginning on September 30 2011 and will mature on March 31 2016 The

notes will have an initial conversion rate of 132.4723 Jaguar common shares
per $1000 principal amount of converted notes

representing an initial conversion price
of

approximately US$7.55
per

common share The conversion rate is subject to certain

anti-dilution adjustments and
adjustments in connection with specified corporate events The notes will be convertible

any

time
prior to maturity Upon conversion the Company may in lieu of delivering its common shares elect to

pay
or deliver as

the case may be cash or combination of cash and common shares in respect of the converted notes Jaguar
will be

required

to make an offer to repurchase
the notes for cash upon the occurrence of certain fundamental changes
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21 CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of
operations

lawsuits have been filed
against

the Company In the
opinion

of management the out

come of the lawsuits now pending
will involve amounts that would not have material adverse effect on the Company and the

status of such claims as indeterminable However should
any

loss result from the resolution of these claims such loss would

be charged against
income in the

year
the claim is resolved

22 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain
comparative figures

have been reclassified to conform to the current years presentation
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